
 

 
 
 

 

  
01293 438000 
 
crawley.gov.uk 
democracy.crawley.gov.uk  

Town Hall 
The Boulevard 

Crawley 
West Sussex 

RH10 1UZ 
 

 
Crawley Borough Council 

 
Planning Committee 

 
 
Agenda for the Planning Committee which will be held in Committee 
Rooms A & B - Town Hall, on Tuesday, 23 April 2024 at 7.30 pm 
 
Nightline Telephone No. 07881 500 227 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 
 
 
  
Membership:    Councillors S Pritchard (Chair), M Mwagale (Vice-Chair), Z Ali, J Bounds, 

J Charatan, K L Jaggard, K Khan, Y Khan, M Morris, S Mullins and 
A Nawaz 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please contact Democratic.Services@crawley.gov.uk if you have any queries regarding this 
agenda.  
 
 
 
 
Published 12 April 2024 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.crawley.gov.uk/
https://democracy.crawley.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.crawley.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.crawley.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

 
Recording of Meeting 

Please note that this meeting will be recorded and subsequently stored on the Council's 
YouTube channel. 

 
To view please visit https://www.youtube.com/crawleybc 

 
 
 

The order of business may change at the Chair’s discretion 
 

Part A Business (Open to the Public) 
 
 Ward Pages 
 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
  

 
2.   Disclosures of Interest    

 In accordance with the Council's Code of 
Conduct, councillors are reminded that it is a 
requirement to declare interests where 
appropriate. 
  

  

 
3.   Lobbying Declarations    

 The Planning Code of Conduct requires any 
councillors who have been lobbied, received 
correspondence, or been approached by an 
interested party regarding any planning matter to 
declare this at the meeting at which the matter is 
being considered. Councillors should declare if 
they have been lobbied at this point in the 
meeting. 
  

  

 
4.   Minutes   5 - 8 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the 
Planning Committee held on 2 April 2024. 
 

  

 
5.   Planning Application CR/2023/0734/FUL - 

Crawley College, College Road,Three 
Bridges,Crawley  

Three Bridges 9 - 32 

 To consider report PES/458a of the Head of 
Economy and Planning. 
  
RECOMMENDATION to PERMIT  
 

  

 

Page 2

https://www.youtube.com/crawleybc


 
 
 
   Pages 

6.   Planning Application CR/2022/0609/FUL - 
Linac House & Adjoining Land, Fleming 
Way, Northgate, Crawley  

Langley Green & 
Tushmore 

33 - 62 

 To consider report PES/458b of the Head of 
Economy and Planning. 
  
RECOMMENDATION to PERMIT 
 

  

 
7.   Supplemental Agenda    

 Any urgent item(s) complying with Section 100(B) 
of the Local Government Act 1972. 

  

 
 
This information is available in different formats and languages.  If you or 
someone you know would like help with understanding this document please 
contact the Democratic Services team on 01293 438549 or email: 
democratic.services@crawley.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 3

mailto:democratic.services@crawley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee (46) 
2 April 2024 

 

 
 

Crawley Borough Council 
 

Minutes of Planning Committee 
 

Tuesday, 2 April 2024 at 8.00 pm  
 

Councillors Present: 
 

 

S Pritchard (Chair) 
M Mwagale (Vice-Chair) 
Z Ali, K L Jaggard, K Khan, Y Khan, S Mullins and A Nawaz 

 
 

Officers Present: 
 

 

Valerie Cheesman Principal Planning Officer 
Siraj Choudhury Head of Governance, People & Performance 
Marc Robinson Principal Planning Officer 
Jess Tamplin Democratic Services Officer 

 
Apologies for Absence: 
 
Councillor J Bounds and J Charatan 
 
Absent: 
Councillor M Morris 

 
 

1. Disclosures of Interest  
 
No disclosures of interests were made. 
  
 

2. Lobbying Declarations  
 
The following lobbying declarations were made by councillors:  
  
Councillors Ali and Nawaz had been lobbied but had expressed no view on 
application CR/2024/0057/FUL. 
  
 

3. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 6 March 2024 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  
  
 

Page 5

 4
 M

in
ut

es

Agenda Item 4



Planning Committee (47) 
2 April 2024 

 
4. Planning Application CR/2023/0314/FUL - County Oak Retail Park (Units 

1A, 1B, 1C, 2A, 2B, 2C, 31, 3BCD and 4B), County Oak Way, Langley 
Green  
 
The Committee considered report PES/47a of the Head of Economy and Planning 
which proposed as follows: 
  
Continued use of the retail park within use class E(A) through consolidation of all 
relevant planning permissions (implemented or extant) since the initial construction of 
the retail park under application references CR/588/86 and CR/253/87. 
  
Councillors Ali, Jaggard, Mwagale, Nawaz, and Pritchard declared they had visited 
the site. 
  
The Principal Planning Officer (MR) provided a verbal summation of the application, 
which sought permission to consolidate the existing planning permissions for use 
classes for units at the County Oak retail park.  The existing conditions were to be 
reapplied with some subject to alteration.  The Officer updated the Committee that, 
since the publication of the report, an update to the report was required: 

       Drawing number 11431-L001, ‘plan with retail floor areas’, had been updated 
to include measurements in square metres rather than square feet, so 
revision D was the latest version of the drawing (rather than revision C as 
listed in the report). 

  
The Officer then gave details of the various relevant planning considerations as set 
out in the report. 
  
Charlotte Williams, the agent (Quod), spoke in support of the application.  Matters 
raised included: 

       The application would consolidate the existing planning permissions and 
conditions and would provide clarity around the future use of the site. 

       The long-term success of the site in providing occupancy and employment 
would be better secured. 

       The application did not propose an increase in floorspace or changes to the 
range of goods able to be sold at the site. 

  
The Committee then considered the application.  In response to a query regarding the 
current use classes at the site, the Officer explained that condition 2 proposed to 
restrict all units covered by the application to use class E(a) (retail use) rather than an 
unrestricted use class which would also allow for other uses such as industrial, office, 
or medical.  It was confirmed that there was only one unit with an unrestricted retail 
offer.  A limit was applied on the amount of floorspace to be used across the site for 
the sale of food, and this would be adhered to and reinforced by the proposed 
reapplication of the conditions.  The sale of foods such as confectionary were covered 
by a separate condition.  
  
Following a query from a Committee member, it was also clarified that the café in the 
car park had not been included in the plans so did not form part of the application. 
  
RESOLVED 
  
Delegate to the Head of Economy and Planning the decision to permit the application, 
subject to the conclusion of the Habitats Regulations Consultation with Natural 
England and to the conditions set out in report PES/457a.  
  
 

Page 6

 4
 M

in
ut

es

Agenda Item 4

https://democracy.crawley.gov.uk/documents/s30064/County%20Oak%20Retail%20Park%20Units%201A1B%201C%202A%202B%202C%2031%203BCD%20and%204B%20County%20Oak%20Way%20Langley%20Green.pdf


Planning Committee (48) 
2 April 2024 

 
5. Planning Application CR/2023/0663/FUL - 149 Rother Crescent, Gossops 

Green, Crawley  
 
The Committee considered report PES/457b of the Head of Economy and Planning 
which proposed as follows: 
  
Erection of single storey flat roof rear extension. 
  
Councillor Ali declared he had visited the site. 
  
The Principal Planning Officer (VC) provided a verbal summation of the application, 
which sought permission for the construction of an extension at the rear of a 
residential home in Gossops Green.  The Officer then gave details of the various 
relevant planning considerations as set out in the report. 
  
The Committee then considered the application.  A Committee member sought 
clarification about the size of the proposed extension, which the Officer confirmed 
would not extend the full width of the existing property – there was to be a gap 
between the joint boundary with no. 151.  The size and design was not considered to 
have a substantial impact on neighbouring properties and was therefore acceptable.   
  
In response to a further query, the Officer confirmed that the extension was to allow 
for the addition of a downstairs bedroom for a disabled occupant.  Crawley Borough 
Council was the applicant as the property was a Council-owned home.  
  
RESOLVED 
  
Permit subject to the conditions set out in report PES/457b.  
  
 

6. Planning Application CR/2024/0057/FUL - 76 Gales Drive, Three Bridges, 
Crawley  
 
The Committee considered report PES/457c of the Head of Economy and Planning 
which proposed as follows: 
  
Erection of two storey rear extension and single storey side extension.  
  
Councillors Ali, Jaggard, Mwagale, and Nawaz declared they had visited the site. 
  
The Principal Planning Officer (VC) provided a verbal summation of the application, 
which sought permission for an extension to a residential property.  The application 
was an updated version of that previously granted permission by the Committee (in 
November 2023) and was of a slightly different design, size, and layout which was 
considered to improve the proposal.  The Officer then gave details of the various 
relevant planning considerations as set out in the report. 
  
The Committee then considered the application.  Several Committee members 
commented that the design of the application was more comprehensive and attractive 
than the previously approved application and supported the changes that had been 
made, in particular to the rear ground floor extension.  In response to a query, the 
Officer clarified that regardless of the decision the Committee was to make on the 
application, works would still be able to be carried out in line with the previously 
approved application at the site.   
  
 
 

Page 7

 4
 M

in
ut

es

Agenda Item 4

https://democracy.crawley.gov.uk/documents/s30062/149%20Rother%20Crescent%20Gossops%20Green%20-%20CR20230663FUL.pdf
https://democracy.crawley.gov.uk/documents/s30063/76%20Gales%20Drive%20Three%20Bridges%20-%20CR20240057FUL.pdf


Planning Committee (49) 
2 April 2024 

 
RESOLVED 
  
Permit subject to the conditions set out in report PES/457c.  
  
 
 
 
Closure of Meeting 
With the business of the Planning Committee concluded, the Chair declared the 
meeting closed at 8.40 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

S Pritchard (Chair) 
 

 

Page 8

 4
 M

in
ut

es

Agenda Item 4



CRAWLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE – 23 April 2024 
REPORT NO: PES/458(a)  

 

 
 REFERENCE NO: CR/2023/0734/FUL 

 
LOCATION: CRAWLEY COLLEGE, COLLEGE ROAD, THREE BRIDGES, CRAWLEY 
WARD: Three Bridges 
PROPOSAL: ERECTION OF A NEW 4 STOREY SUSSEX AND SURREY INSTITUTE OF 

TECHNOLOGY BUILDING, AND THE RECONFIGURATION OF THE CAR PARKING 
LAYOUT WITH ASSOCIATED HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING AND NEW 
SUBSTATION. 

 
TARGET DECISION DATE: 19 March 2024 

 
CASE OFFICER: Mrs A. Sanders 

 
APPLICANTS NAME: Chichester College Group 
AGENTS NAME: Vail Williams LLP 

 
 
PLANS & DRAWINGS CONSIDERED: 
 

Drawing Number Revision Drawing Title 
SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-1001 

P01 Site Location Plan 

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-1010 

P01 Existing Site Layout Plan 

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-1011 

P06 Proposed Site Layout 

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-00-D-
A-2001 

P08 Proposed Ground Floor Plan 

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-01-D-
A-2002 

P04 Proposed First Floor Plan 

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-02-D-
A-2003 

P04 Proposed Second Floor Plan 

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-03-D-
A-2004 

P04 Proposed Third Floor Plan 

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-RF-
D-A-2005 

P03 Proposed Roof Plan  

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-3301 

P06 Proposed Elevation East  

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-3304 

P05 Proposed Elevation North  

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-3302 

P06 Proposed Elevation South  

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-3303 

P06 Proposed Elevation West  

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-4001 

P01 Proposed GA Section North South   P01   
Crawley College Iot 

SSIOT-BBA-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-4002 

P01 Proposed GA Section East West   P01   
Crawley College Iot 

SSIOT BBA ZZ ZZ D 
A 1014 

P02 Substation Layout 

LLD2660-LAN-DWG-
002 

07 Landscape Masterplan  

IOT-EDP-XX-GF-DR-
ME-8000 

P02 Electrical Services  

Page 9

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5

https://planningregister.crawley.gov.uk/Planning/Display/CR/2023/0734/FUL#SupportingDocumentsTab


CRH-XX-XX-DR-C-
5050 

P3 Proposed Drainage 

SSIOT-EDP-ZZ-03-D-
M-5003 

P01 Piped Services & Ventilation Ground Floor 

IOT-EDP-XX-GF-DR-
ME-8000  

P02 External Services Utilities Infrastructure 

LLD2660-ARB-DWG-
020 

06 Tree Retention Protection Plan 

  
CONSULTEE NOTIFICATIONS & RESPONSES:- 
 
1. GAL Aerodrome Safeguarding   No objection subject to conditions  
2. WSCC Highways     No objection subject to conditions  
3. National Air Traffic Services (NATS)   No objection  
4. Thames Water     No objection subject to conditions  
5. CBC Drainage Officer     No objection subject to conditions  
6. CBC Planning Arboricultural Officer   No objection subject to conditions  
7. CBC Sustainability Team    No objection subject to conditions  
8. CBC Contaminated Land Officer   No objection  
9. CBC Environmental Health Officer   No objection subject to conditions   
10. Crawley Cycle & Walking Forum   Suggest funding for improved walking and cycle 

paths to the east and south of the site, travel plan 
updated, cycle/e-cycle parking to south, cycle 
rack expansion prior to occupation  

11. CBC Energy Efficiency & Sustainability  No objection subject to conditions  
12. CBC Retail & Employment    No objection  
13. CBC Urban Design     No objection subject to suggested amendments  
14. NatureSpace      No objection  
15. Police       No objection  
16. UK Power Networks     No objection  
17. The Gatwick Diamond Initiative   No comments received  
18. WSCC Fire & Rescue     No objection subject to conditions  
19. Place Services - Ecology    No objection subject to conditions  
20. Town Centre BID     No comments received  
21. WSCC Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)  Awaiting final comments    
 
NEIGHBOUR NOTIFICATIONS:-  
 
The application was publicised by the display of four site notices on 16th January 2024, with an expiry date 
of 6th February 2024.   
 
RESPONSES RECEIVED:- 
 
One letter of representation from a local resident has been received, raising the following concerns: 
 

• Support the proposal in principle but concerned regarding the impact on the large oak tree (T01) and 
its long term health. 

• Is the Root Protection Area shown correctly?  
• Tree retention and protection plan doesn’t correspond with the Arboricultural Impact Assessment in 

terms of excavations.  
• The building footprint/location should show a more sympathetic and improved relationship with the 

oak tree.  
• Suggest tree is protected by a TPO.  

 
A letter of support was received from Councillor Lamb advising the following: 
 

• Crawley has the lowest social mobility in the South East and far too many of the highest paying jobs 
within the town are held by those commuting into Crawley for work. Addressing this and promoting 
local economic growth focused on the technologies of the future requires investment in the facilities 

Page 10

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



for training and retraining local workers. This application has a central role to play in ensuring that this 
happens. 

 
REASON FOR REPORTING TO COMMITTEE:- 
 
This application is a major development.  
 
THE APPLICATION SITE:- 
 
1.1 Crawley College lies at the eastern end of Crawley town centre. It forms a substantial site (approx. 3 
 hectares) containing a range of educational buildings, including the College’s landmark tower. The 
 campus predominantly fronts College Road, but also has a frontage onto Northgate Avenue and 
 Haslett Avenue East/Three Bridges Road.  
 
1.2 The current application site primarily lies towards the southern end of the campus, within the existing 

car park between the STEM and ATC buildings to the north and the Longleys building to the south. 
The site is located in relative proximity to the entrance of the site from the Haslett Avenue East and 
Three Bridges Road roundabout, but it is also clearly visible from College Road. Vehicular access to 
the site is from the Haslett Avenue East/Three Bridges Road roundabout. There is a footpath to the 
east of the site with residential flats beyond. The eastern boundary comprises large mature trees and 
vegetation with metal railings. This area is defined as Structural Landscaping in the Local Plan.   

 
1.3 There are metal railings along the majority of the boundary frontage to College Road. There are also 

mature trees and grass verges along the boundaries. Within the application site, there is a belt of 
mature trees which runs across the campus from the west to the east. A recent Tree Preservation 
Order (ref. 02/2024) protects three individual oak trees and a group containing four oak trees within 
this tree belt. The College’s ATC building is to the immediate north of the application site, with other 
buildings, including a four storey College building (D Block) and the tower, further north. Most of the 
buildings in the northern part of the site are of a similar character and finished in concrete, with the 
exception of the recently built STEM building. There is a car park to the south of the application site 
and the College’s newer Longley building beyond.  

 
1.4 The wider College site lies within the Town Centre Boundary defined in the adopted and emerging 

Local Plans. It is defined as a Town Centre Key Opportunity Site within the Draft Crawley Borough 
Local Plan. It has few other recognised constraints, although Council records show ‘filled ground,’ 
possibly contaminated and forming the route of some pipework, entering the College site in its north-
east corner, running in a south-westerly direction and exiting onto College Road. The site lies within 
the Sussex North Water Resource Zone and is served by Southern Water. 

 
THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:- 
 
2.1 Planning permission is sought for a new four storey Sussex and Surrey Institute of Technology 

building, the reconfiguration of the car parking layout with associated hard and soft landscaping  and 
a new substation. The proposal forms the second phase, following the STEM building, of the wider 
redevelopment of the Crawley College site. 

 
2.2 The proposed building would be located on an area of existing car parking to the north of Longleys 

and to the south of the STEM and ATC buildings. The building would be rectangular with a flat roof. 
The building would have a maximum width of 25m and a maximum length of 33m with a height of 
17.8m to the top of the building and a further 2m to the top of the lift overrun/plant enclosure. The 
building would total 2,692 sqm (GIA). Internally the ground floor of the building would incorporate a 
glazed café/social area, innovation space, a reception/check in office and a large circulation/lobby 
reception which provides access to the lift and central stair core. An engineering workshop 
accommodating large and heavy specialist equipment, toilet facilities and support areas would also 
be located on the ground floor. A Construction Hub workshop would be located to the southeast corner 
with an independent access for users. There would be roller shutter doors which would open onto an 
external fenced building yard outside the Construction Hub. 

 
2.3 The sustainability technologies workshop and construction technologies space would be located on 

the first floor, in addition to a staff suite. The second floor would be organised as a series of flexible 

Page 11

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



teaching spaces and seminar rooms, including an independent / group study room, a second 
engineering workshop with dedicated lab space, plus tutorial spaces. The third floor would 
accommodate further labs for robotics, networks and two computing studies. Access to the roof would 
be via the secondary external stair positioned on the northern elevation of the proposed  building. 
PV panels are proposed on the roof as well as the lift overrun, an air handling unit, air source heat 
pumps and vents which form part of the assisted natural ventilation system.  

 
2.4 The elevations of the proposed building would be clad primarily with metal panels laid vertically, 

creating an overall metallic look. The panels would be both wide and narrow. There would be a brick 
plinth around the entire ground floor of the building which would also continue through to the 
construction hub to the south. Branded graphics would be located on the building recess at ground 
floor. On the west elevation there would be a colour feature element comprising vertical aluminium 
fins in a satin amber colour which would be encased in grey rainscreen cement panels. Below this 
would be feature aluminium glazing to the ground floor in grey. On the south-east corner of the building 
there would also be a glazing feature as well as a coloured element also in satin amber. Signage is 
proposed on this corner of the building. 

 
2.5 The proposals would provide for 50 additional staff members (35 FTE) and 644 additional students. 

The total number of staff at the Crawley Campus would increase to 332 (18% increase) and the 
proposal would facilitate an increase to 4,710 students (16% increase). The proposed development 
would result in a loss of 87 car parking spaces. Currently there are 209 car parking spaces within the 
application site, which would reduce to 122.   

 
2.6 In support of the application, the College has submitted: 
 

• Design and Access Statement 
• Planning Statement 
• Renewable Energy and Low Carbon Systems Feasibility Report  
• Transport Statement 
• Travel Plan 
• Construction Management Plan  
• Noise Impact Assessment 
• Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement  
• Tree Constraints Plan 
• Tree Protection Retention Plan 
• Existing Tree Schedule  
• Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy  
• Utilities Infrastructure Report  
• Geotechnical Desktop Study 
• Air Quality Assessment  
• Ecological Impact Assessment  
• Landscape Master Plan and Landscape Design Strategy Water Neutrality Statement  
• External Lighting Report 

 
2.7 The proposal has been amended during the course of the application, following requests from 

officers and consultees. The building has been moved 2m further to the south, the elevations have 
been amended and the location of the substation moved slightly. Further information has also been 
submitted including: 

 
• Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Assessment 
• BNG Metric Calculations 
• BREEAM Pre-assessment 
• Sustainability Report 
• Combined Services Plan 
• Bird Hazard Management Plan  
• Fire Hydrant Location 
• Dust Management Plan  
• Tree Protection and Retention Plan  
• Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement 

Page 12

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



• Proposed Drainage Layout and Rainwater System  
• Substation Installation Noise Report 
• Water Neutrality Statement Supplementary Report  

 
PLANNING HISTORY:- 
 
3.1 The College campus has a long planning history and most applications are not relevant to the current 

proposal. Construction work on the College began in 1956, with the first students arriving in 1958. A 
second stage of development, including the tower, was approved in 1961 and opened in 1967. The 
relevant previous applications are: 

 
 CR/2022/0815 - CONSTRUCTION OF CANOPY AND SECURITY HUT, ASSOCIATED WORKS 
 INCLUDING ERECTION OF NEW SECURITY GATES AND FENCING AND WIDENING 
 FOOTPATH AT THE APPLICATION SITE. Yet to be determined.  
 

CR/2020/0741/FUL - FORMATION OF NEW EXTERNAL ACCESS PATH TO MAIN ENTRANCE OF 
STEM FACILITY, INCLUDING NEW DOUBLE GATE IN THE EXISTING FENCE. Permitted.  

 
CR/2019/0403/FUL – ERECTION OF A THREE STOREY BUILDING TO PROVIDE TEACHING 
FACILITIES, CLASSROOMS AND PRACTICAL SPACE FOR SCIENCE TECHNOLOGY 
ENGINEERING AND MATHS (STEM) PROVISION. Approved following completion of a S106 
agreement 12 December 2019. The S106 agreement secured the preparation and agreement of a 
masterplan for the wider College site. The masterplan was subsequently agreed. 

 
CR/2018/0341/FUL - ERECTION OF A PART 8/PART 6 STOREY BUILDING TO PROVIDE A TOTAL 
OF 98 FLATS, WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND FRONTAGE SERVICE BAY. 
Approved following completion of a S106 agreement 16 August 2018. 

 
PLANNING POLICY:- 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2023 
 
4.1 The NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with 

the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. More specifically: 
 

• Section 2 (Achieving Sustainable Development) – This section states that achieving sustainable 
development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives: an economic 
objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, a social objective- to 
support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a sufficient number and range 
of homes can be provided to meet the needs of present and future generations, and an 
environmental objective to contribute to protecting and enhancing our natural, built and historic 
environment. This includes making effective use of land and helping to improve biodiversity. 

 
• Section 4 (Decision-making) – This section states that Local Planning Authorities should 

approach decisions in a positive and creative way, seeking to approve applications for 
sustainable development where possible. It encourages pre-application engagement and states 
that decisions should be made as quickly as possible. Weight should be given to emerging 
policies, depending on the stage of preparation of the emerging plan, the extent of unresolved 
objections and the degree of consistency with the NPPF. 

 
• Section 6 (Building a strong, competitive economy) – This states that decisions should help 

create conditions that enable businesses to invest, expand and adapt and to enable the 
economy to address challenges of the future. 

 
• Section 7 (Ensuring the vitality of town centres) – This states that decisions should support the 

role that town centres play within their communities and take a positive approach to growth and 
adaptation. 

 
• Section 8 (Promoting health and safe communities) – Planning decisions should positively 

address provision of community facilities. Paragraph 100 states that to ensure faster delivery of 

Page 13

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



other public service infrastructure such as further education colleges, local planning authorities 
should also work proactively and positively with promoters, delivery partners and statutory 
bodies to plan for required facilities and resolve key planning issues before applications are 
submitted. 

 
• Section 9 (Promoting sustainable transport) – This section states that the potential impact upon 

transport networks should be addressed and that opportunities to promote walking, cycling and 
public transport use should be pursued. Adverse impacts should be mitigated. Significant 
development should be focused on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through 
limiting the need to travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes. This can help to 
reduce congestion and emissions, and improve air quality and public health. All developments 
that will generate significant amounts of movement should be required to provide a travel plan. 

 
• Section 11 (Making effective use of land) – This section promotes an effective use of land in 

meeting the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving the environment 
and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions. Strategic policies should set out a clear strategy 
for accommodating objectively assessed needs, in a way that makes as much use of possible of 
previously-developed or ‘brownfield’ land. 

 
• Section 12 (Achieving well-designed places) - The creation of high quality buildings and places 

is fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a 
key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and 
helps make development acceptable to communities. Development that is not well designed 
should be refused. 

 
• Section 14 (Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change) – This states 

that, in addition to supporting the increased use of renewable and low carbon energy and 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions, including complying with local sustainability requirements, 
flood risk should not be increased elsewhere and sustainable drainage systems should be 
incorporated in major developments. 

 
• Section 15 – Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. Planning policies and 

decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment, including 
minimising impacts on and providing measurable net gains for biodiversity, including by 
establishing coherent ecological networks, and enhanced public access. Development should 
not add to or be at risk from pollution. 

 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 
 
4.2 The following policies from the adopted Local Plan are relevant: 
 

• Policy SD1 (Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development) In line with the planned 
approach to Crawley as a new town, and the spatial patterns relating to the neighbourhood 
principles, when considering development proposals, the Council will take a positive approach to 
approving development which is sustainable. 

• Policy CH1 (Neighbourhood Principles) States that the neighbourhood principle would be 
enhanced by maintaining the neighbourhood structure of the town with a clear pattern land uses 
and arrangement of open spaces and landscape features. 

• Policy CH2 (Principles of Good Urban Design) States that all proposals for development in 
Crawley will be required to respond to and reinforce local distinctive patterns of development 
and landscape character, and create continuous frontages onto streets and spaces enclosed by 
development which clearly defines private and public areas. 

• Policy CH3 (Normal Requirements of All New Development) states all proposals for 
development in Crawley will be required to make a positive contribution to the area; be of a high 
quality design, provide and retain a good standard of amenity for all nearby and future 
occupants of land and buildings and be able to meet its own operational requirements 
necessary for the safe and proper use of the site. 

Page 14

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



• Policy CH4 (Comprehensive Development and Efficient Use of Land) requires proposals to use 
land efficiently, not unduly restrict the potential of adjoining land nor prejudice planning and 
phasing of development over a wider area. 

• Policy CH6 (Tree Planting and Replacement Standards) requires any trees lost as a result of 
development to be replaced or mitigated. Where possible the trees are expected to be provided 
on site although, where this is not feasible, commuted sums will be sought in lieu. 

• Policy CH7 (Structural Landscaping) requires that development proposals should protect and/or 
enhance structural landscaping, which runs along the footpath to the east of the site. 

• Policy CH8 (Important views) requires that the important views identified on the Local Plan Map 
should be protected and/or enhanced and development proposals should not result in a direct 
adverse impact or lead to the erosion of these views. The Crawley College site lies within the 
Long Distance View Splay from Tilgate Park. The College’s Tower building is specifically 
mentioned with reference to the Linear Contained View along The Boulevard, which it 
terminates looking eastwards. 

• Policy CH17 (Historic Parks and Gardens) states that the council will support development, 
unless it will have a negative impact upon the historic setting and character of the designated 
Historic Park or Garden. 

• Policy EC1 (Sustainable Economic Growth) states that the council will ensure that all suitable 
opportunities within the borough are fully explored to enable existing and new businesses to 
grow and prosper.  

• Policy EC6 (Development Sites within the Town Centre Boundary) does not specifically identify 
the Crawley College site (except for the former car park site), but states that sites within the 
Town Centre Boundary provide an important opportunity to promote town centre viability in a 
sustainable location through mixed use development that meets the economic and housing 
needs of the borough. 

• Policy ENV1 (Green Infrastructure) advises that Crawley’s multi-functional green infrastructure 
network will be conserved and enhanced through the following measures: i. development which 
protects and enhances Green Infrastructure; ii. Development proposals should take a positive 
approach to designing green infrastructure; and iii. Proposals which reduce, block or harm the 
functions of green infrastructure will be required to be adequately justified. 

• Policy ENV2 (Biodiversity) requires proposals to incorporate features to encourage biodiversity 
where appropriate and to enhance existing nature conservation features. 

• Policy ENV6 (Sustainable Design and Construction) requires all development to demonstrate 
how it will meet sustainability objectives both in its design and construction processes and also 
specifically to achieve BREEAM excellent for water and energy credits where viable. 

• Policy ENV7 (District Energy Networks) requires that any major development proposal should 
demonstrate whether it can connect to an existing DEN network where available, and if not 
available how it may develop its own system, or how it may include site-wide communal energy 
systems, or be ‘network ready’ to connect to a DEN on construction or at some point after 
construction, all subject to technical or financial viability. 

• Policy ENV8 (Development and Flood Risk) the policy states that development proposals must 
avoid areas which are exposed to an unacceptable risk from flooding, and must not increase the 
risk of flooding elsewhere. 

• Policy ENV9 (Tackling Water Stress) seeks that all new non-residential development achieves 
BREEAM Excellent including addressing maximum water efficiencies under the mandatory 
water credits. 

• Policy ENV10 (Pollution Management and Land Contamination) seeks to address land 
contamination and to mitigate its impacts. 

• Policy ENV11 (Development and Noise) addresses noise impact. It states that noise generating 
development will only be permitted where it is demonstrated that nearby noise sensitive use will 
not be adversely affected. A Noise Impact Assessment will be required where developments are 
likely to be exposed to significant noise levels. 

• Policy IN1 (Infrastructure Provision) states that development will be permitted where it is 
supported by the necessary infrastructure both on and off site and if mitigation can be provided 
to avoid any significant cumulative effects on the existing infrastructure services. 

• Policy IN2 (Strategic Development of Telecommunications Infrastructure) requires all residential, 
employment and commercial development to be designed to be connected to high quality 
communications infrastructure. 

Page 15

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



• Policy IN3 (Development and Requirements for Sustainable Transport): Advises that 
development should be concentrated in locations where sustainable travel patterns can be 
achieved through the use of the existing transport network, including public transport routes and 
the cycling and walking network. 

• Policy IN4 (Car and Cycle Parking Standards) states that development will be permitted where 
the proposals provide the appropriate amount of car and cycle parking to meet its needs when it 
is assessed against the borough council’s car and cycle standards. 

• Policy IN5 (The Location and Provision of New Infrastructure) supports the provision of new or 
improved infrastructure and states that major facilities serving a wider area should be in a 
sustainable location accessible by a variety of means of transport. 

 
Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 – 2040 
 
4.3 Following the close of the Local Plan Examination Hearings, receipt of the Inspectors’ Post-Hearing 

 letter (dated 31 January 2024) and the publication of the Main Modifications for formal public 
 consultation, the emerging Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040 has reached a very advanced 
 stage. Due to this advanced stage, the up-to-date evidence supporting the emerging Local Plan and 
 the clear indications provided in the Inspectors’ Post-Hearing letter, the policies in the emerging Local 
Plan should be given substantial weight. This should only differ where there is a Main Modification 
 proposed to the policy element being applied. The following policies are relevant: 

 
• Policy SD1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
• Policy CL2: Making Successful Places: Principles of Good Urban Design 
• Policy CL3: Movement Patterns, Layout and Sustainable Urban Design 
• Policy CL5: Significant Development, Masterplanning and Design Success 
• Policy CL6: Structural Landscaping 
• Policy CL7: Important and Valued Landscape and Views 
• Policy DD1: Normal Requirements of All New Development 
• Policy DD2: Inclusive Design 
• Policy DD4: Tree Replacement Standards 
• Policy HA6: Historic Parks and Gardens 
• Policy IN1: Infrastructure Provision 
• Policy IN2: The Location and Provision of New Infrastructure 
• Policy IN3: Supporting High Quality Communications 
• Policy EC1: Sustainable Economic Growth  
• Policy EC5: Employment and Skills Development 
• Policy TC2: Town Centre Neighbourhood Facilities 
• Policy TC3: Town Centre and Key Opportunity Sites  
• Policy TC4: Active and Engaging Frontages 
• Policy GI1: Green Infrastructure  
• Policy GI3: Biodiversity and Net Gain 
• Policy SDC1: Sustainable Design and Construction 
• Policy SDC2: District Energy Networks 
• Policy SDC3: Tackling Water Stress 
• Policy SDC4: Water Neutrality  
• Policy EP1: Development and Flood Risk 
• Policy EP3: Land and Water Quality  
• Policy EP4: Development and Noise  
• Policy ST1 Development and Requirements for Sustainable Transport 
• Policy ST2: Car and Cycle Parking Standards 

 
Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents 
 
4.4 The following Supplementary Planning Documents and Guidance Notes are also relevant to this 

application. They were all adopted by the Council in October 2016: 
 

Page 16

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



• Planning and Climate Change – Sets out a range of guidance seeking to reduce energy 
consumption, minimise carbon emissions during development, supporting District Energy 
Networks, using low carbon or renewable energy sources, tackling water stress, coping with 
future temperature extremes, dealing with flood risk and promoting sustainable transport. 

• Urban Design – This document provides further advice on the principles of good urban design in 
the Crawley context, highlighting in particular the importance of massing and materials, public 
realm, street design and parking and sustainable design. 

 
In respect of non-residential development, para 3.62 states: “The layout of non-residential 
development is particularly important to their success. This should address the street and the public 
realm in a considerate manner and not turn their back on the existing streetscape and layout of the 
town. The appropriate scale and massing of the development will depend on the location and 
existing urban fabric. Active frontages are particularly important to the vitality of the streetscape and 
the success of commercial and retail uses and should be incorporated within the design from the 
start”. 

 
For commercial development consideration should be made of appropriate materials, colours and 
massing to improve the architectural language (as buildings are often designed functionally with little 
architectural merit). Greater consideration of the layout of the buildings to the street is encouraged 
along with opportunities to improve the urban environment and use of landscaping. 

 
Annex 1 contains the Borough’s indicative minimum parking standards. Disabled, cycle and 
motorcycle parking standards are also contained within Annex 1. 

 
• Green Infrastructure – Sets out the Council’s approach to trees, open space and biodiversity. 

The Local Plan identifies Northgate Avenue and the footpath/cyclepath to the east of the College 
as Structural Landscaping. The SPD gives guidance on supporting and enhancing Structural 
Landscaping. 

 
• Town Centre – Supports regeneration and development to promote the economic growth, vitality 

and viability of the town centre, which forms a sustainable location for development. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:- 
 
5.1 The main issues for consideration are: 

• Principle of development 
• Design considerations 
• Highways and parking 
• Trees  
• Impact upon amenity  
• Ecology and biodiversity 
• Sustainability 
• Gatwick Airport 
• Drainage and contamination 
• Water neutrality  

 
Principle of development 
 
5.2 The application site is located within the Town Centre Boundary and adopted Local Plan Policy EC6 

(Development Sites within the Town Centre Boundary) applies. The policy recognises that several 
sites within the Town Centre are currently under-utilised, with their improvement presenting an 
opportunity to accommodate identified needs, enhance the role of the town centre and provide 
facilities for new and existing residents in sustainable and accessible locations. In relation to the 
Crawley College site, Policy EC6 refers specifically to Land East of the Tower, which has since 
been built out for residential use as part of the education-led redevelopment of the wider college 
site. The supporting Reasoned Justification (Para 5.59) recognises that other sites not explicitly 
identified in Policy EC6 may also come forward over time.  

 
5.3 More broadly, the application responds to the College Masterplan objectives to support the overall 

improvement of the site, through development of a high-quality educational facility on the south of 

Page 17

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



the college site and residential uses on the northern part of the site, whilst overall ensuring that the 
principal educational function of the site is retained. 

 
5.4 The application is supported by adopted Local Plan Policy IN5 (Location and Provision of New 

Infrastructure), which supports new/improved infrastructure (including education) in appropriate 
locations where they add to the range and quality of facilities in the town. The application would also 
create additional jobs and college places, supporting the wider economic function of Crawley 
(Policies EC1 and EC2). 

 
5.5 Following the close of the Local Plan Examination Hearings, receipt of the Inspectors’ Post-Hearing 
 letter (dated 31 January 2024) and publication of the Main Modifications for formal public 
 consultation, the overall weight of the emerging Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040 in 
 Development Management decisions has significantly increased. 
 
5.6 The Council’s Development Plan remains the adopted Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030. This 

is the borough’s Development Plan against which Development Management decisions should be 
taken, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. However, the emerging Crawley Borough 
Local Plan 2023-2040 is also an important material consideration. Due to its advanced stage, the 
up-to-date evidence supporting it and the clear indications provided in the Inspectors’ Post-Hearing 
letter, where there is conflict between the adopted Local Plan Policies and the emerging Policies, 
the latter should be awarded substantial weight. This should only differ where there is a Main 
Modification proposed to the Policy element being applied. More detail is provided below in relation 
to these scenarios. For clarity, reference to ‘substantial’ reflects greater weight than ‘significant’. 

 
5.7 Policy TC3 (Key Town Centre Opportunity Sites) of the Draft Local Plan applies. This identifies the 

whole Crawley College site for mixed use development with priority for education. The policy 
stipulates that any development must accord with the Crawley College Masterplan or an appropriate 
amended masterplan agreed with the Local Planning Authority. It should cover the whole campus 
and will be required  to demonstrate that it can be achieved in a manner that prioritises the 
ongoing viability and function of Crawley College as a Further Education facility. As the policy is 
subject only to additional (i.e. not Main) modifications, it may be afforded substantial strong weight.  

 
5.8 A new Paragraph 11.27 in the Draft Local Plan is proposed as a Main Modification. This clarifies the 

position in relation to the existing and agreed College Campus Masterplan and the requirement that 
redevelopment of the site retains its principal education function. Whilst that text represents a Main 
Modification, it is reflecting an established position that is secured through the existing Crawley 
College Masterplan (which was secured and subsequently agreed through the recent STEM 
building planning permission) and may therefore be afforded substantial strong weight. Overall, in 
improving the education facilities on-site, the application is consistent with emerging Policy TC3.  

 
5.9 Turning to other relevant policies in the emerging Local Plan, in providing educational facilities 
 within the town centre, the application is consistent with Policy TC2 (Town Centre Neighbourhood 
 Facilities). This policy is not subject to any modifications and may be given substantial strong 
 weight. 
 
5.10 Policy IN2 (Location and Provision of New Infrastructure) supports new/improved infrastructure in 
 appropriate locations. The Main Modification does not alter this position, and this element of the 
 policy may be afforded substantial strong weight. 
 
5.11 More broadly, the application aligns with Policy EC1 objectives to maintain and enhance Crawley’s 
 economy and support the intensification of under-utilised sites in Main Employment Areas for 
 employment use. Again, the Main Modifications do not relate to this element of the policy, and 
 substantial strong weight may be applied. 
 
5.12 Overall, the proposal is consistent with the relevant economic policies of the adopted and emerging 
 Local Plans and is supported in principle. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



Design considerations 
 
5.13 The proposed building would be located on part of the existing car park to the south of the existing 

College site. The entrance and pedestrian gates from Haslett Avenue East to the south-east would 
be relocated slightly and a new substation is proposed to the front of this. A pedestrian footpath 
within the site would connect pedestrian movements between College Road and Haslett Avenue 
East past the proposed entrance to the new building. Disabled parking would be located to the 
immediate south of the building with an area of landscaping to the south and west. The parking 
layout to the west would be re-configured and there would be a small path around the building to 
provide access. 

 
5.14 The building would be rectangular in shape, with an angled entrance feature at ground floor on the 

west elevation in grey bricks. The south-west corner of the building would be raised above this, 
providing a covered overhang above the main entrance to the proposed building. There would be a 
square feature projection on the west elevation comprising vertical aluminium fins in an amber 
colour encased in cement panels in grey. The materials on the remaining building would be metal 
panels with grey aluminium glazing. There would be an area for signage on the south-east corner, 
visible from the roundabout, also in the aluminium (amber in colour).  

 
5.15 There is a masterplan for the entire Crawley College site. The purpose of the masterplan is to 
 illustrate the opportunities for the cohesive and effective use of the whole site and the further 
 ambitions for development on the site, particularly demonstrating how the educational requirements 
 for the College will continue to be met in the future. The master plan also sets out the proposed 
 phasing and potential layouts and concepts for the whole site, to ensure that the site enhances the 
 ability of the College in the short, medium & long term, to meet the educational needs of the Town. 
 The masterplan identifies important views and vistas across the college site and any new 
 development should not result in an adverse impact or erosion of these views. The relevant vista to 
 this application is looking across the site from College Road to the south east.  
 
5.16 The Urban Design Officer was consulted on the application. He commented that, as there is an 

agreed Masterplan for the wider college site, it is important to understand how the proposal aligns 
with this. He advised that the proposal reflects a number of the key Masterplan parameters, 
including the retention of the existing band of trees, the siting of the building to allow for through 
routes and diagonal vistas across the site from College Road to the south-west and the ‘college 
green’ area of open space to the west of the proposal.  

 
5.17 The Urban Design Officer advised that there were some masterplan requirements that were not 

addressed in terms of the elevational treatment of the building. He advised that the south-west 
corner of building projected too far west and suggested that this corner needed to be pulled back, 
chamfered or squared off as well as amendments to this elevation in terms of detailing and 
materials. He also advised that the south elevation did not adequately address the important 
position of the building in the wider urban structure as this would be the main public façade for the 
new college campus and town centre. 

 
5.18 Amendments were sought to the workshop yard to improve this elevation by incorporating the 

workshop into the design of the building, in order to ground the building’s volume. The south-west 
corner of the building was chamfered and a continuous brick element introduced that wrapped 
around from the entrance to the south and east elevations. The chamfering also provided a greater 
viewing corridor when viewed from across the site. Changes have also been made to the south and 
west elevations to introduce further glazing and panelling to provide more articulation. The Urban 
Design Officer advised that the changes were an improvement to the scheme and anchored the 
building whilst creating an improved façade when viewed from the wider area.  

 
5.19 Queries were raised over the location of the substation and if this could be moved away from the 

southern boundary and also whether there was external access to the café. Access from the café 
has been provided within the north elevation to an external seating area. The substation has been 
moved further to the west and would now be screened by landscaping. Amendments were 
requested to  improve the planting / landscaping along the eastern boundary however as there is a 
thick band of trees and vegetation to the immediate east of the boundary officers did not consider 
further landscaping was necessary.  

Page 19

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



 
5.20 The main matter which has not been addressed is the encroachment into the viewing corridor when 

viewed from Haslett Avenue East through to Queensway. The entire building has been moved 2m to 
the south to limit the impact on the Oak tree. As a result of this the north-west corner of the building 
encroaches further into this diagonal viewing corridor from College Road through to Haslett Avenue 
East. However, whilst there is an encroachment, views are still experienced across the site and 
there is a legible route around the building which provides a clear pathway across the college site to 
Queensway. The chamfered south-west corner of the building has also further opened up the 
ground floor of the building allowing for a diagonal vista across the site. Therefore, whilst there is an 
encroachment it is considered acceptable in this instance given that views are still afforded across 
the site and this would not compromise the wider masterplan for the site.  

 
5.21 The scale and character of the building is considered acceptable, it is a comprehensive layout and 

design which would integrate well within the existing site. The scale and volume of the building can 
be comfortably accommodated on the site and works well with the existing college campus. 
Regarding the proposed materials for the building, the amber fins, concrete panels, proposed bricks 
and glazing are considered acceptable and provide variety and articulation. The metal panels are 
considered too stark and need further consideration, the details of which can be secured by 
condition.  

 
5.22 Given the above and subject to conditions securing the materials for the building, the overall 

scheme has been improved since the planning application was submitted and officers consider that 
the building would be an acceptable addition to the college campus. It would integrate well with the 
existing buildings on the site and when viewed from the wider area. The building would form the 
next stage in redevelopment of the College campus. The proposal would therefore accord with 
development plan policy in this regard.  

 
Highways and parking 
 
5.23 In transport terms, the main issue for consideration is the reduction in on-site car parking required to 

accommodate the proposed new building. There are currently 209 spaces included within the 
application site boundary. There are also a further 79 parking spaces across with wider college 
campus site, 52 fronting College Road to the north-west and 27 spaces to the north-east of the 
application site. As such, the existing college site has a total of 288 spaces. The proposal would result 
in the loss of 87 on-site car parking spaces and these would not be re-provided elsewhere, reducing 
the number of spaces to 122 (within the application site red line boundary) and 201 (across the entire 
site). The remaining 122 spaces within the application site would be for staff, visitors and a limited 
number of students. The vehicle parking standards state that for higher and further education, 1 space 
per 2 staff is required and 1 space per 15 students. This would equate to a total of 68 spaces for the 
proposed building, but clearly the existing College buildings generate additional requirements.  

 
5.24 The Transport Statement anticipates 130 staff (full time equivalent (FTE)) being on site at any one 
 time, from a total of 185 FTE staff. Student numbers would increase from 4,066 to 4,710 with 644 
 students being accommodated within the proposed IOT building. Peak student numbers on site at 
 any one time is estimated as 1,260. From the travel patterns and at peak demand times, it is 
 anticipated that 71% of staff are likely to travel to the campus by private car, equating to 
 approximately 92 vehicles. Within the application site, a total of 96 proposed spaces would be 
 allocated for staff and, of the  remaining 27 spaces, 10 could be provided for students with 
 exceptional travel circumstances and a further 12 spaces should be allocated for car-pooling / lift-
 sharing amongst staff. A further 5 spaces would remain for minibus parking (2 no) and the College’s 
 three Electric Pool Cars for staff that travel between campuses. These calculations do not take into 
 consideration the additional 79 spaces on the wider college campus.  
 
5.25 Whilst the vehicle parking standards are not met across the entire college campus, based on 
 existing staff/student numbers and the proposed increase, the predicted daily numbers imply that 
 the college can meet the parking demand for the site. As previously mentioned, the site is in a very 
 sustainable location within the town centre, on the Fastway bus route, cycle routes and close to two 
 train stations.  Further we would want to discourage private car use given  this very sustainable 
 location where there are numerous alternative sustainable travel options.    
 

Page 20

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



5.26 There would be a minimum of 9 disabled parking bays. Currently there are 6 EV active charging 
 bays with a further 6 active and 8 passive proposed. The Draft Local Plan state that 45% of parking 
 spaces should be active charging and ducting provided to all remaining spaces where appropriate 
 to provide ‘passive’ provision. Based on the vehicle parking standards for the proposed building, 30 
 of the total 68 spaces required for the proposed development would need to be EV charging 
 spaces. Currently there are 20 spaces resulting in a short fall of 10 spaces. It is suggested that 
 additional EV spaces are provided to meet this shortfall and to provide further spaces for the wider 
 college site. A condition is suggested in this regard. A further 10 motorcycle spaces are proposed. 
 
5.27 In terms of cycle and scooter parking, a total of 82 spaces are to be provided as part of this phase of 

the masterplan. There are 42 existing spaces close to the eastern boundary and 40 new spaces 
proposed adjacent to the western boundary. There is also space to the immediate south of the 
proposed cycle rack for a further 40 cycle spaces which are intended to the be safeguarded moving 
forward. The existing access to and from the College site from the public highway would remain 
unchanged and the proposed cycle parking is located in close proximity to the new College Road 
cycle path. There are no specific cycle parking standards for colleges, but the proposed level of 
provision and the capacity for expansion in future is considered acceptable. 

 
5.28 The Local Highway Authority (LHA) were consulted on the application and advise that there are 

extensive existing waiting restrictions and parking controls on the surrounding highway network. They 
consider that the reduction in car parking would not result in displaced car parking taking place on-
street around the site. The LHA also advise that the reduction in parking is not anticipated to result in 
any safety impacts. The site is otherwise in a highly accessible location close to the town centre, bus 
services, train services and footpaths/cyclepaths. These provide future staff, students and visitors 
with a realistic opportunity to travel by means other than the private car. 

 
5.29 The College already has a Travel Plan covering the wider college campus. It is intended to update 

this to include the proposed development. The LHA advise that the measures and targets included 
within the TP are site specific and considered appropriate. The LHA raised queries regarding the 
monitoring of the TP and firmer targets to be set. Updated information was subsequently provided 
addressing these queries and the LHA now raise no objection to the proposal. Conditions and a S106 
agreement can be used to secure the implementation of the Construction Management Plan and also 
the agreement, implementation and ongoing monitoring of the Travel Plan.  

 
5.30 Officers consider that, whilst a significant number of parking spaces would be lost as a result of the 

proposed building, the College site is located centrally within Crawley. It has excellent access to 
numerous car parks, the train station, bus stops, cycle routes and footpaths. Further, as the LHA have 
advised, the waiting restrictions around the site would ensure that there would be no overspill parking 
on nearby roads. Given the specific characteristics of this site, the loss of on-site parking would be 
acceptable in this instance. A S106 agreement is proposed to secure the Travel Plan and its 
monitoring by the Local Highway Authority. Subject to this, the proposal would be acceptable in this 
regard.  

 
5.31 A consultation response from Active Travel Crawley suggested cycle and footpath improvements. 
 There is an extensive  network of pedestrian routes which provide access to the surrounding areas. 
 In terms of cycle infrastructure in and around the existing site, there are a number of on-road and 
 off-road facilities. College Road itself was improved in August 2022 as part of the Eastern Gateway 
 Scheme which has delivered connectivity improvements between the College, the Town Centre and 
 the Rail Station. College Road has benefited from a dedicated 3m wide footway cycleway along 
 Haslett Avenue East as well as cycle lanes north and south on College Road. Crossing facilities are 
 located to the north, west and south. There is an opportunity to improve the cycle route along 
 Hazlett Avenue East and advice is being sought from the LHA regarding this.    
 
5.32 Given the above, officers consider that, whilst there is a significant loss of on-site parking, the 

sustainable location, alternative travel options, surrounding parking controls and the Travel Plan 
would ensure that there would be no adverse highways impacts. Therefore, the proposal would accord 
with development plan policy in this regard.  

 
 
 

Page 21

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



Trees  
 
5.33 There is a provisional Tree Preservation Order in force, which protects a number of trees on the 

College campus, including seven oak trees within the current application site. A total of 9no. trees fall 
within the site boundary with a further 18no. trees located adjacent to the site boundary. It is proposed 
to remove 7 small Category C Ash and Cherry trees currently situated in between the parking rows 
within the existing car park. An additional 9 trees will be provided to replace those that are to be 
removed. The tree replacement standards contained within policy CH6 of the Crawley Borough Local 
Plan and policy DD4 of the Draft Local Plan advise that the number of trees required to compensate 
for the loss of existing trees depends upon the size of the trees to be lost. Of the 7 trees to be removed, 
none of them have a trunk diameter over 19.9cm. As such, one tree replacement is required for each 
tree lost, equating to 7 trees. A total of 9 new trees are proposed which would meet the policy 
requirements. A condition is recommended to secure this.  

 
5.34 The proposed building would be located within close proximity to a substantial mature Oak tree (T01) 

as well as three smaller oak trees (T02, T03 and T04). The significance of these trees warranted a 
Tree Preservation Order being served and these trees are now covered by a provisional TPO (ref 
02/2024). During the assessment of the application, it was also considered that the proposed building 
would be located too close to T01. The tree’s canopy was shown on the plans as touching the 
proposed building. The CBC Arboricultural Officer raised an objection. He was concerned regarding 
the long term health of the tree, due to the need for constant pruning as a result of the proximity of 
the new building. The Arboricultural Officer advised that the building needed to be moved 2m further 
away from this tree. As a result of this, the building was moved 2m to the south, creating a greater 
separation distance from the tree. The Tree Officer advised that this would be a sufficient distance 
and, as a result of the new location, the tree would only need to be pruned modestly every five years 
instead of aggressively pruned every three years (in the original location). As a result of this the tree 
officer removed his objection, subject to conditions requiring adherence to the Arboricultural Reports 
and for the tree protection fencing to be installed prior to the commencement of the development.  

  
5.35 Numerous reports were submitted in the form of an Arboricultural Supervision Report, Root 
 Investigation Report, Gro-injector Method Statement (to de-compact the ground as well as inject 
 organic materials to promote future root growth). Subject to adhering to the submitted reports, it is 
 not considered that the proposal would have an adverse impact upon the Oak trees. The proposal 
 would therefore accord with development plan policy in this regard.  
 
Impact upon amenity 
 
5.36 The nearest neighbouring properties to the proposed building would be the blocks of flats within Elm 

Croft Court to the east of the site. The nearest blocks would be 27m and 30m respectively from the 
proposed development. In the intervening space are large mature trees, which form the eastern 
boundary of the college site and are defined as Structural Landscaping. This area also contains a 
north-south footpath/cycleway. The flats stand at three storeys high, with some of the trees projecting 
far above these flats. There are side windows on some of the flats which face onto the College site 
and thus the proposed building would be visible from a small number of these properties. However, 
views would be partially obscured by the existing tree coverage. Given this, combined with the good 
separate distance between the existing flats and the proposed building and the positioning of these 
flats angled away from the development, the proposal is not considered to result in the loss of light, 
loss of privacy or overbearing impact to these neighbouring flats. 

 
5.37 The building would be used as an Institute of Technology, with equipment and machinery in use. An 

external construction yard is also proposed to the south of the building, together with a new electricity 
substation to the south-east of the site. Consequently, there is potential for noise disturbance. As a 
result of this, the Environmental Health Officer requested further information regarding the noise 
emissions from the activities within the building as well as from the substation. A Noise Report has 
been submitted and the EHO advised that, based on the data provided, he is satisfied that nearby 
noise sensitive residents will not be adversely affected. He has no further comments to make and 
considers the proposal would be acceptable in terms of noise impacts. 

 

Page 22

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



5.38 There are no other residential properties within close proximity to the proposed building that would be 
impacted by the development. Given the above, the proposal would not result in an adverse impact 
on residential amenity and would accord with development plan policy in this regard.  

 
Ecology and biodiversity 
 
5.39 The application was supported by an Ecological Impact Assessment relating to the likely impacts 

upon designated sites, protected and Priority species and habitats and the identification of 
proportionate mitigation. The Ecological officer raised no objection to the proposal, subject to 
suggested conditions securing the mitigation measures identified in the Ecological Impact 
Assessment. Biodiversity enhancements are proposed, in the form of a bat box suitable for a range 
of species to be incorporated into the southern aspect of the new college building; nest boxes suitable 
for a range of species to be incorporated into the northern aspect of the new college building; planting 
of additional shrubs with wildlife value; and incorporation of an invertebrate box on the southern 
aspect of a tree on site.  

 
5.40 Regarding Biodiversity Net Gain, the mandatory obligations of achieving 10% BNG are not a legal 

requirement for this planning application, as it predates the formal introduction of BNG. Nevertheless, 
during the course of the application, a Biodiversity Net Gain statement and metric calculations were 
submitted which demonstrate that the development can achieve 12.5% net gain across the college 
site. This can be secured by condition. 

 
5.41 Given the above, the proposal would be acceptable in terms of ecology and biodiversity and would 
 accord with development plan policy in this regard.  
 
Sustainability 
 
5.42 The applicant has submitted a Sustainability Statement and BRUKL output document. A BREEAM 
 issue checker has been submitted, but not a full BREEAM pre-assessment. The Sustainability 
 Officer requested further information during the course of the application to ensure compliance 
 with the relevant sustainability policies. The indicated energy modelling provided shows the building 
 as having net zero emissions in terms of regulated operational emissions. The Sustainability Officer 
 advises that this exceeds the Local Plan BREEAM energy/emissions target.  
 
5.43 Regarding the District Energy Network, a plan has been submitted which includes the proposed 
 pipework and connection to the future district heating system. The Sustainability officer advises that 
 this is acceptable for the purposes of demonstrating compliance with adopted policy ENV7 and draft 
 policy SDC2. A condition is recommended to secure this. The submitted plans also show a PV solar 
 array although the number of panels is still unclear. A condition is recommended for further 
 information prior to installation. Regarding achieving formal BREEAM certification a condition is 
 recommended to ensure this. Subject to conditions to secure the implementation of the above 
 proposed measures, the scheme is considered acceptable in sustainability terms. 
 
Gatwick Airport 
 
5.44 GAL Safeguarding and NATS have been consulted on the proposal. Neither raises any objection, 

subject to conditions requiring the implementation of the Bird Hazard Management Plan and 
landscaping scheme. Conditions are also recommended regarding the submission of details of the 
PV solar panels prior to installation. Subject to the above, no concern is raised in this regard.  

 
Drainage and contamination 
 
5.45 The application was supported by a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy. The site does 

not lie within an area of flood risk from watercourses. Given the site area of less than 1 hectare and 
flood zone classification (Flood Zone 1) the Environment Agency did not need to be consulted on this 
application. However, the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) and the Council’s Drainage Officer (DO) 
were consulted on the proposal.  

 
5.46 It is proposed to discharge the surface water from the development into the existing sewers that serve 

the site. Roof water will be collected via a rainwater harvesting tank prior to discharge into the main 

Page 23

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



surface water system. It is also proposed that there would be a large attention tank under part of the 
building and the car park. The Strategic Flood Risk Assessment identifies that the location of the site 
is in an area of medium susceptibility to ground water flooding. As a result, it is proposed that the 
building would be 300mm above existing ground levels to ensure the floor levels are above current 
surface water flood levels.  

 
5.47 The Drainage Officer raised no objection to the proposal but requested further information regarding 

the pollution indices. A letter was also requested from Thames Water for them to confirm that they 
have capacity and are willing to take the discharge from the proposed development. This information 
was provided and the drainage officer advised that subject to conditions requiring a surface water 
construction management plan and post construction certification prior to the occupation of the 
development, no objection is raised.   

 
5.48 The LLFA originally raised objections to the proposal as information and calculations were not 
 provided to demonstrate that there would not be an impact on surface water drainage. Calculations 
 and further information has been submitted to address these concerns. Final comments from the 
 LLFA have not been received, but officers consider that it should be possible to address their 
 comments by suitably worded conditions. An update will be provided at the committee meeting. 
 
5.49 Regarding contaminated land, the Contaminated Land Officer advised that the site is considered a 
 low risk given the site history and nature of the development and has no further comment to make. 
 The proposal would therefore be acceptable in this regard.  
 
Water neutrality 
 
5.50  New development tends to result in water consumption increasing and Crawley is situated in an 

area of serious water stress. Much of Crawley’s water is sourced from abstraction points within the 
Sussex North Water Resource Zone (SNWRZ), which drains water from the Arun Valley Special 
Area of Conservation, Special Protection Area and Ramsar Site (all designated sites under the 
Habitats Regulations). 

 
5.51 Natural England is raising a serious concern that such abstraction may be causing significant 

adverse impacts on the biodiversity of such areas, and is highlighting that developments must not 
add to these impacts. The Local Planning Authority received a Position Statement from Natural 
England on 14 September 2021. It raised significant concerns about the impact of water abstraction 
in the SNWRZ upon the protected sites. Consequently, new development within the Water 
Resource Zone is required to be water neutral in order to avoid further adverse impact upon the 
protected habitats and species.  

 
5.52 The applicant has submitted a Water Neutrality Statement and a Water Neutrality Supplementary 

 Report. The proposed development is located on an existing car park with no confirmed existing 
 water consumption. As such the existing water use is nil. The existing site layout plans confirm that 
 all land located within the red line boundary is currently car parking. The calculations provided 
 indicate that the applicant will attempt to achieve neutrality through minimising use within the new 
 building, reusing water where possible and retrofitting some of the College’s existing buildings. 
 Water Environment, the Council’s independent consultants, have reviewed the applicant’s  
 proposals.  

 
5.53 The proposed development would be a four-storey educational building, with internal areas detailed 

 as follows based on available floor plans: 
• Level 00 (engineering workshops, plant rooms, meeting areas, cafe, and social spaces) = 

630m2 
• Level 01 (construction hub, lab, computer suite, staff rooms and offices) = 703 m2 
• Level 02 (engineering workshop, computer suite and classrooms) = 703 m2 
• Level 03 (labs and teaching rooms) = 654 m2 

 The site plans confirm a total gross internal area of 2,690 m2. There would be toilets on all floors, 
 showers in accessible WCs on two floors, a small staff room kitchenette / coffee area, a first aid 
 room with sink, plus a café / canteen area within the social space on the ground floor. 
 

Page 24

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



5.54 The applicant proposes to minimise water consumption by installing low flow fittings in the 
 proposed new building. The following fittings are specified:  

• WC 4/2.6 litre dual flush; 
• Hand basin taps flow rate 2 litres/minute; 
• Kitchen taps flow rate 5 litres/minute; and  
• Shower head flow rate 5 litres/minute. 

 The proposed fittings can be secured by legal agreement to ensure that water savings are 
 provided for the development lifespan.  

5.55 Calculations of the water use per person per day (litres / person / day) are included based on the 
specified fittings. The calculations presented in the WNS use the BREEAM 2018 WAT 01 Water 
calculator tool using the setting for new education buildings. The BREEAM calculation results in a 
default building occupancy of 355 people and 195 default annual days of operation. Based on an 
expected water consumption of 16.77 litres / person / day, the total water consumption is expected 
to be 5,953 litres / day or 1,160,903 litres / year (1,160 m3/ year). These occupancy figures are 
robust based on the proposed floor areas.  

 
5.56 The application indicates that the entire building will be within Use Class F1 – Learning and Non-

Residential Institutions. However, Class F1 allows a range of uses including; schools, museums, 
galleries, libraries, halls, places of worship, church halls, law courts and training centres and the 
ability to change within these uses without requiring planning permission. Therefore, to accord with 
the Habitats Regulations requirements, a condition is suggested to restrict the use to education 
only, rather than other potential uses with higher water consumption. A condition is also 
recommended to restrict the use of the cafe so that there is no provision for more intensive 
preparation of food.  

 
5.57 The WNS excludes the 5 litres/person/day required allowance for external water use. A sensitivity 

test was undertaken by Water Environment to add the standard allowance of 5 litres/person/day to 
account for potential external water usage to water landscaped areas. This would require 
approximately 650 m3 of additional water use per annum (based on the proposed occupancy of 
355). Considering the fact the development would currently be water neutral by approximately 360 
m3, this would no longer guarantee water neutrality. All potential rainwater yield is allocated to WC 
flushing and there is no additional rainwater available for irrigation. Discussions are on-going with 
the agent to find a solution to this and to allow for sufficient watering of the landscaped areas. An 
update will be provided at the committee meeting.  

 
5.58 Since water neutrality cannot be reached through low consumption fittings within the proposed 
 building and rainwater harvesting alone, it is proposed to retrofit low flow basin taps within the 
 adjacent College building to offset the increased water use. Based on photographic evidence of the 
 current standard of taps, the estimated high flow rates seem likely, and this is further reinforced with 
 water bills showing high use. Assumptions appear sound, and this opportunity could help to reduce 
 water use significantly on the wider site.  
 
5.59 Water Environment conclude that the presented water budget indicates that the development would 
 likely be water neutral as a result of low water use in the proposed development, incorporation of 
 rainwater harvesting for WC flushing and through offsetting by retrofitting of low flow fittings in the 
 neighbouring units. However, the margin presented is small (the development is neutral by 364 
 litres / day, approximately 6%). As such conditions should be applied regarding the café area and 
 external water usage.  
 
5.60 Given the above, it is considered that the development would be water neutral, subject to the 
 matter on landscape watering being addressed. However, this is subject to a legal requirement to 
 complete an Appropriate Assessment and consult with Natural England. It is therefore 
 recommended that the proposals are permitted subject to the completion of the Habitats 
 Regulations Appropriate Assessment and consultation with Natural England and  securing the 
 proposed mitigation via both conditions and legal agreement. 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



CONCLUSIONS:- 
 
6.1 The proposed building would provide a new teaching facility to enable Crawley College to deliver 

the IoT, enhancing the skills available within the local community and helping to meet local business 
needs. It would also continue to facilitate the redevelopment of the wider campus and help to make 
better use of the land. Officers had some concerns about the design and location of the proposed 
building, as well as the impact on the nearest oak tree. However, improvements have been made 
since the application was submitted, including relocating the building slightly. The scheme is 
considered acceptable in terms of transport, subject to measures to promote sustainable transport. 
Sustainability, drainage and aviation issues have all, subject to conditions, been resolved.  

 
6.2 Subject to the satisfactory conclusion of the required Habitats Regulations consultation with Natural 

England and the completion of a S106 legal agreement, the proposal would then, subject to 
conditions, accord with the relevant sections of the NPPF, policies within the Crawley Borough Local 
Plan 2015–2030, the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023–2040, and the relevant 
Supplementary Planning Guidance. On this basis, it is recommended that planning permission be 
granted.  

 
RECOMMENDATION RE: CR/2023/0734/FUL 
 
Delegate the decision to PERMIT to the Head of Economy and Planning, subject to:  
 

1. The satisfactory conclusion of the required Habitats Regulations consultation with Natural 
England; 

 
2. Subject to the conclusion of a Section 106 legal agreement to secure:  

• Travel Plan and monitoring fee of £3500 
• Water Neutrality Measures  

 
3.  Subject to the following conditions:- 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years from the date of this 

permission. 
 REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the approved 

plans as listed below save as varied by the conditions hereafter: 
 (Drawing numbers to be added) 
 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(England) Order 2015, including any future amendments, the proposed building hereby approved shall 
only be used for Provision of Education (F1(a)) and for no other purpose, without the prior written 
consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development can achieve water neutrality and to protect the ongoing 
viability and function of Crawley College as a further education facility and in accordance with policy 
ENV2 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and Policies TC3 and SDC4 of the Draft Crawley 
Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
4. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a Construction Phase Surface Water 

Management Plan and Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Details shall include: 

 a) construction drawings of the surface water drainage network 
 b) associated sustainable drainage components  
 c) flow control mechanisms  
 The scheme shall then be constructed as per the agreed drawings, management plan and method 

statement, Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy and additional calculations and remaining for 
the lifetime of the development unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No alteration 
to the agreed drainage scheme shall occur without prior written approval from the Local Authority. 

Page 26

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



 REASON: The drainage strategy requires the remodification of existing SuDS and drainage features to 
accommodate the new development and it is important that the proposed details and design based on 
the surface water modelling report is carried out as detailed to avoid environmental problems and to 
ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability in accordance with policy ENV8 
of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030 and EP1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 
- 2040. 

 REASON why pre-commencement condition: As it relates to potential impact upon the surrounding area 
starting from the setting up for construction activities. 

 
5. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the Construction 

Management Plan (Rev 0) dated 07/12/23 submitted with the application unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the area in accordance with policy 
CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy DD1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local 
Plan 2023-2040.  

 
6. No development, including site works of any description, shall take place on the site unless and until all 

the existing trees/bushes/hedges around the site have been protected by the site boundary timber/ply 
hoarding shown on the Tree Retention Protection Plan drawing no. LLD2660-ARB-DWG-020 Rev 06 
dated 10.04.24. Within the areas outside the site hoarding, the existing ground level shall be neither 
raised nor lowered and no materials, temporary buildings, plant machinery or surplus soil shall be placed 
or stored thereon without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. If any trenches for 
services are required in the fenced off areas they shall be excavated and backfilled by hand and any 
tree roots encountered with a diameter of 25mm or more shall be left unsevered. 

 REASON: To ensure the retention and maintenance of trees and vegetation which is an important 
feature of the area in accordance with policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030 and 
policy DD1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 2040. 

 
7. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of additional EV charging spaces 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include 
the location of at least ten further EV charging spaces. The agreed provision shall be implemented and 
made operational before the building hereby approved is brought into use.  

 REASON: In the interests of sustainable design and construction in accordance with policy ENV6 of the 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policy SDC1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2024-
2040 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document.  

 
8. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with Landscape Design Strategy 

ref: LLD2660-LAN-REP-001 Rev 03 dated 10/04/2024 and the Landscape Masterplan drawing number 
LLD2660-LAN-DWG-002 Rev 07 dated 10/04/24. No alterations to the approved landscaping scheme 
are to take place unless submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: To ensure the retention and maintenance of trees and vegetation which is an important 
feature of the area and to mitigate bird hazard and avoid endangering the safe movements of aircraft 
and the operation of London Gatwick through the attraction of birds in accordance with policy CH3 of 
the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030 and policy DD1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 
2023 - 2040. 

 
9. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in 

the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the 
development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of five years from 
the completion of the development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

 REASON: In the interests of amenity and of the environment of the development in accordance with 
policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030 and policy DD1 of the Draft Crawley Borough 
Local Plan 2023 - 2040. 

 
10. The development hereby approved shall be constructed in accordance with the levels shown on the 

approved drawings. 
 REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail in the interests of 

amenity in accordance with policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policy DD1 of 

Page 27

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 2040 and the Urban Design Supplementary Planning 
Document. 

 
11. Prior to any above ground works, a schedule of materials and samples shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in strict 
accordance with the approved details.  

 REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail in the interests of 
amenity in accordance with Policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and Policy DDI 
of the Draft Crawley Borough Local 2023 - 2030.  

 
12. No cables, wires, aerials, pipework (except rainwater downpipes as shown on the approved plans), 

meter boxes or flues shall be fixed to the external elevations of the development hereby approved unless 
details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail in the interests of 
amenity by endeavouring to achieve a building of visual quality in accordance with Policy CH3 of the 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, Policy DD1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-
2040 and the Urban Design Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
13. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site, then 

no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be 
carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local Planning 
Authority for a remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. 
The remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved, verified and reported to the satisfaction of 
the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: As there is potential for unexpected contamination to be identified during development 
groundworks and for the protection of groundwater in accordance with Policy ENV10 of the Crawley 
Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and Policy EP3 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
14. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, confirmation that the development has 

been fully implemented in accordance with the permitted SUDS scheme shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall be completed by an appropriate third 
party. The SUDS shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the details set out in the Flood Risk 
Assessment and Drainage Strategy dated December 2023 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: To ensure sustainable treatment of surface water run-off in accordance with policy ENV8 of 
the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policy EP1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 
- 2040 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
15. The Bird Hazard Management Plan dated March 2024 shall be implemented as approved upon 

completion of the roof and shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to 
the plan are to take place unless first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 REASON: It is necessary to manage the roof in order to mitigate bird hazard and avoid endangering the 
safe movements of aircraft and the operation of Gatwick Airport through the attractiveness of birds and 
in accordance with policy IN1 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy IN1 of the Draft 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 2040. 

 
16. Within three months of the occupation of the development hereby approved, a full BREEAM 

Assessment shall be carried out and post construction BREEAM Certification confirming achievement 
of the minimum Energy and Water credits required for BREEAM "Excellent" shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: In the interests of sustainable design and construction in accordance with Policies ENV6 and 
ENV9 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, Policy SDC1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local 
Plan 2023 - 2040 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
17. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the sustainability measures identified in 

the submitted Part L2 Compliance Report dated 8 March 2024 Ref: SSIOT-EDP-ZZ-ZZ-RP-MX-2000-
P02 shall be implemented unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 28

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



 REASON: In the interests of sustainable design and construction in accordance with policy ENV6 of the 
2015 Crawley Borough Local Plan, policy SDC1 of the 2023 Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 
2040 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document.  

 
18. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the measures to enable the development 

to be 'network ready' to connect to the District Energy Network which are identified in the submitted 
Sustainability Update for IoT Building, dated 11 March, Ref 4358/NW, and drawing IOT-EDP-XX-GF-
DR-ME-8000 Rev P02, shall be implemented unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 REASON: In the interests of environmental sustainability, in accordance with policy ENV7 of the 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, Policy SDC2 of the 2023 Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 
2023 - 2040 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
19. No solar panels shall be installed until full details of PV and solar thermal schemes have been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No subsequent alterations to the approved 
schemes are to take place unless submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall be implemented as approved prior to the first occupation of the building hereby 
approved. 

 REASON: To ensure the development does not endanger the safe movement of aircraft or the operation 
of London Gatwick through interference with communication, navigation and surveillance equipment or 
glint and glare issues in accordance with policy IN1 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and 
policy IN1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 2040. 

 
20. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until a minimum of 42 covered and 

secure cycle parking spaces have been provided as shown on approved drawing SSIOT BBA ZZ ZZ D 
A 1011 P06 dated 03/04/3034 and made available for use, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  

 REASON: To encourage sustainable travel options and in accordance with policies IN3 and IN4 of the 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030, policy ST2 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-
2040 and the parking standards set out in the Urban Design Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
21. Prior to any works above slab level, a Biodiversity Enhancement Strategy for protected and Priority 

species shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This will include 
the provision of integral bird, bat and invertebrate boxes and wood habitat piles, in line with the 
Ecological Impact Assessment (Lizard Ltd, February 2023). The content of the Biodiversity 
Enhancement Strategy shall include the following: 

 a) Purpose and conservation objectives for the proposed enhancement measures; 
 b) detailed designs or product descriptions to achieve stated objectives; 
 c) locations, orientations and heights of proposed enhancement measures by appropriate maps and 

plans (where relevant); 
 d) persons responsible for implementing the enhancement measures; and 
 e) details of initial aftercare and long-term maintenance (where relevant). 
 The works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained in that 

manner thereafter. 
 REASON: To enhance protected and Priority species & habitats in accordance with Policy ENV2 of the 

Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030 and Policy GI3 the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 
2040.   

 
22. The Ecological mitigation measures and/or works including timescales shall be carried out in 

accordance with the details contained in the Ecological Impact Assessment (Lizard Ltd, 07/12/2023) 
submitted with the application. Only these approved details shall be implemented.  

 REASON: To conserve and enhance the protected and Priority species in accordance with Policy ENV2 
of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030 and policy GI3 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 
2023 - 2040.   

 
23. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the Dust Management Plan 

Rev 00 dated 19.3.24 submitted with the application. Reason: In the interests of amenity and in 
accordance with Policies CH3 and CH12 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 – 2030 and Policies 
DD1 and EP5 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 2040.  

 

Page 29

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



24. The cafe on the ground floor of the building hereby permitted shall be limited to a small coffee shop 
selling prepackaged food, snacks and hot and cold beverages only. The café shall not include the 
provision of food preparation facilities and no commercial fittings or appliances for dishwashing or other 
associated uses shall be installed.  

 REASON: To ensure the development is water neutral in accordance with Policy ENV9 of the Crawley 
Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030 and Policy SDC4 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 2040. 

 
25. Prior to the occupation of the building hereby permitted, the proposed fire hydrant as shown on External 

Services drawing IOT-EDP-XX-GF-DR-ME-8000 Rev P02 shall be installed in the approved location to 
BS750 Fire Standards for stored water supply and arrange for the connection to a water supply which 
is appropriate in terms of both pressure and volume for the purposes of firefighting. Details and evidence 
of the installation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the occupation of the building.  

 REASON: In the interests of amenity and in accordance with Policies IN1 and CH3 of the Crawley 
Borough Local Plan 2015–2030 and Policies DD1 and IN2 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 
2023-2040.  

 
 INFORMATIVES 
 
1. Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane or tall reaching construction 

equipment may be required during construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to 
the requirement within the British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane 
operators to consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. London 
Gatwick requires a minimum of four weeks' notice. For crane queries/applications, please visit Crane 
Permits (gatwickairport.com) or email cranes@gatwickairport.com. 

 
2. The applicant is directed to the following website: www.securedbydesign.com where the Secured by 

Design (SBD) Commercial Guide 2023 can be found. This guide incorporates the latest security 
standards, developed to address emerging criminal methods of attack, and includes references to the 
Building Regulations and other statutory requirements across the United Kingdom. 

 
3. Within the boundaries of Crawley Borough Council, the Control of Pollution Act 1974 is used to control 

noise from construction sites.  Section 60 of the Act permits Local Authorities to specify the hours the 
noisy works are permitted.  

  
 The permitted hours for noisy construction work in the Borough of Crawley are a follows: 
 0800 to 1800 Monday to Friday and 
 0800 to 1300 on Saturday. 
 With no noisy construction works taking place on Sundays, Bank Holidays, Public Holidays, Christmas 

Day, Boxing Day or New Year's Day. 
  
 The developer shall employ at all times the best practical means to minimise noise disturbance to nearby 

residents.  All construction work practises shall comply with B.S. 5228 1:2009 'Code of practice for noise 
and vibration control on construction and open sites'. 

  
 Any exemptions to the above hours must be agreed with The Environmental Health Team in advance. 
 
4. The developer is advised that a Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be 

required for discharging groundwater into a public sewer.  Any discharge made without a permit is 
deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991.  The 
developer would need to demonstrate what measures will be undertaken to minimise groundwater 
discharges into the public sewer. Permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water’s Risk 
Management Team by telephoning 020 3577 9483 or by emailing trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk. 
Application forms should be completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk. Please refer to the 
Wholesale; Business customers; Groundwater discharges section. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 30

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



NPPF Statement 
  
 In determining this planning application, the Local Planning Authority assessed the proposal against all 

material considerations and has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner based on 
seeking solutions where possible and required, by: 

  
 • Providing advice in a timely and manner through pre-application discussions/correspondence. 
  
 • Liaising with members/consultees/respondents/applicant/agent and discussing the proposal where 

considered appropriate and necessary in a timely manner during the course of the determination of the 
application.  

  
 • Seeking amended plans/additional information to address identified issues during the course of the 

application. 
  
 This decision has been taken in accordance with the requirement in the National Planning Policy 

Framework, as set out in article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) Order 2015. 

 

Page 31

 5
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

3/
07

34
/F

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 

 

P
age 32

 5 Planning Application CR/2023/0734/F

A
genda Item

 5



CRAWLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 April 2024 
REPORT NO: PES/458(b)  

 

 
 REFERENCE NO: CR/2022/0609/FUL 

 
LOCATION: LINAC HOUSE & ADJOINING LAND, FLEMING WAY, NORTHGATE, CRAWLEY 
WARD: Langley Green & Tushmore 
PROPOSAL: REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR THREE COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS – UNIT 1 

(CLASS B2 USE), UNITS 2 AND 3 (CLASS B8 USE) AND ASSOCIATED SERVICING, 
PARKING AND LANDSCAPING. 

 
TARGET DECISION DATE: 22 December 2022 

 
CASE OFFICER: Mrs V. Cheesman 

 
APPLICANTS NAME: Phoenix Life Limited 
AGENTS NAME: Brunel Planning 

 
 
PLANS & DRAWINGS CONSIDERED: 
 

Drawing Number Revision Drawing Title 
19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-1000 

P02 Location Plan 

19023-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-1100 

P03 Site Plan As Existing 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2120 

P12 Site Plan As Proposed  Phase 1 - Unit 1 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2121 

P17 Site Plan As Proposed 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2310  

P02 Elevations Existing Building C 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2133  

P02 Elevations Existing Building D & J 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-Z-2312  

P02 Elevations Existing Building H 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2200  

P05 Floor Plans As Proposed Unit 1 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2201  

P05 Floor Plans As Proposed Unit 2 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2202  

P05 Floor Plans As Proposed Unit 3 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2220  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building C (1 of 2) 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2221  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building C (2 of 2) 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2222  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building D 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2223  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building H (1 of 5) 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2224  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building H (2 of 5) 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2225  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building H (3 of 5) 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2226  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building H (4 of 5) 

Page 33

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6

https://planningregister.crawley.gov.uk/Planning/Display/CR/2022/0609/FUL#SupportingDocumentsTab


19032-HNEW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2227  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building H 05 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2228  

P01 Floor Plans Existing Building J (1 of 2) 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-D-
A-2229  

P02 Floor Plans Existing Building J (2 of 2) 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2330  

P07 Proposed Elevations   Phase 1 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2332  

P09 Proposed Elevations Unit 1 & 2 

CBC 0001 
 

Proposed Elevations Unit 3 
19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2320  

P02 Site Sections As Existing 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2321  

P02 Site Sections As Proposed 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2335  

P03 Street Elevations 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2340  

 
Typical Sections As Proposed 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
100  

11 Area 1 Landscape General Arrangement 
Drawing 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
200  

05 Area 1 Detailed Planting Plan 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
300  

01 Area 1 Planting Profiles and Details 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
101  

10 Area 2 Hard & Soft General Arrangement 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
201  

03 Area 2 Detailed Planting Plan 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
301  

01 Area 2 Planting Profiles & Details 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
102  

11 Area 3 Landscape General Arrangement 
Drawing 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
202  

04 Area 3 Detailed Planting Plan 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
302  

01 Area 3 Planting Profiles &  Details 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2900  

P03 3D view looking SW along Fleming Way 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2901  

P03 3D view looking SE along Fleming Way 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2902  

P02 3D view looking SW along Fleming Way 
Phase 1 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2903  

P01 3D view looking SE along Fleming Way 
Phase 1 

19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-7901 

P01 Bike Stores 

LLD2669-LAN-DWG-
010 

04 Landscape Master Plan 

3000031-17 B Pedestrian Routes Read only 
19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2334 

P05 Proposed Elevations Unit 3 

300031-015 C Refuse Vehicle Swept Path 
19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2150 

P02 Proposed Roof Site Plan 

300031-13 E Swept Path Analysis - Unit 2 
300031-14 E Swept Path Analysis - Unit 3 
300031-19 

 
Swept Path Analysis 16 

Page 34

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



300031-16 C Swept Path Analysis High Reach Fire 
Applicance 

300031-18 C Swept Path Analysis Internal Bend 
300031-12 F Swept Path Analysis Unit 1 
19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-
DR-A-2340 

P02 Typical Sections-As Proposed 

  
CONSULTEE NOTIFICATIONS & RESPONSES:- 
 
1. GAL Aerodrome Safeguarding    Conditions required to comply with 

safeguarding criteria  
2. Environment Agency      No comments to make 
3. WSCC Highways      No objections subject to highway/access  

works being secured by a s106 
agreement and conditions  

4. National Air Traffic Services (NATS)    No safeguarding objection 
5. Thames Water      No objections  
6. Police        No objections - comments made  

regarding security issues 
7. CBC Drainage Officer      No objections subject to conditions  
8. CBC Planning Arboricultural Officer    No objection subject to tree protection  

measures being implemented  
9. UK Power Networks      Comments made 
10. CBC Sustainability Team     No comment received 
11. CBC Contaminated Land Officer    No objections subject to conditions  
12. CBC Environmental Health Officer    No objections subject to conditions and  

informative 
13. CBC Refuse & Recycling Team    No comments received  
14. Southern Water Ltd      A water supply to service the proposed  

development can be facilitated. A formal 
application for a connection to the water 
supply is required to be made by the 
applicant or developer 

15. CBC Energy Efficiency & Sustainability   No objections subject to conditions 
16. CBC Retail & Employment/ Manor Royal   Proposal is supported in economic policy 

terms      
17. CBC Urban Design      Comments made   
18. WSCC Lead Local Flood Authority    No objections subject to conditions 
19. CBC Air Quality Officer     No objection subject to conditions and  

S106 legal agreement to secure 
mitigation 

20. CBC Economic Development     No comments received 
21. Manor Royal Business District    Support     
22. Place Services - Ecology     No objection subject to conditions 
 
NEIGHBOUR NOTIFICATIONS:-  
 
 
The application has also been advertised through a press advert and by two site notices that were displayed 
at the site on 11th November 2022 with an expiry date of 2nd December 2022. 
 
RESPONSES RECEIVED:- 
 
A letter of support has been received from Gatwick Diamond Business commenting that the redevelopment 
of the site and the opportunities this will create for Elekta to make operational improvements will be welcomed. 
 
REASON FOR REPORTING TO COMMITTEE:- 
 
The application is major development. 
 

Page 35

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



 
THE APPLICATION SITE:- 
 
1.1 The site is comprised of Linac House, a 5 storey office building and four other low rise buildings, and 

has a road frontage onto Fleming Way in the Manor Royal Business District. The site area is 2.17ha 
and it forms part of the wider Elekta campus. This includes the main head office building, Cornerstone 
House, which is positioned at the corner of London Road (A23) and Fleming Way. Linac House is 
currently vacant. The other buildings on the site are used by Elekta for the research, development, 
manufacturing and assembly of medical equipment for clinical radiotherapy treatment. 

 
1.2 Access to the site is from Fleming Way and there are car parking areas to the front and rear of the 

site plus service areas to the rear. The buildings have a combined floorspace of 13,931sqm. The 
surrounding uses are commercial. To the immediate east is the Premier Inn Hotel fronting onto 
Fleming Way, with Virgin Atlantic premises and Boeing Flight Services set to the south east behind 
the Hotel. To the immediate south are the Thales premises. 

 
1.3 The site lies within the Manor Royal Main Employment Area, thus policies EC2 and EC3 of the 

adopted Local Plan are relevant. The estate is covered by Article 4 Directions removing various 
permitted development rights for changes of use to residential (C3) uses.   

 
1.4 The site also lies within a Priority Area for District Energy Networks (policy ENV7) and within the long 

distance viewpoints from Target Hill and Tilgate Park (policy CH8). The site is shown as contaminated 
land on Council records.  

 
1.5 Fleming Way is adopted public highway and this includes the grass verge and pavement which runs 

across the site frontage, and which is owned by West Sussex County Council. 
 
1.6 The water supply for the site is from Southern Water sourced from the Sussex North Water Supply 

Zone. 
 
THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:- 
 
2.1 The proposal is for the demolition of the existing buildings on the site and the subsequent 

redevelopment of the site by the construction of 3 separate commercial units, as now amended. The 
proposed Unit 1 would be used for Class B2  -  general industrial  and the proposed Units 2 and 3 
would be used for Class B8 - storage and distribution.  

 
2.2 The existing access point at the north-eastern corner of the site would be utilised. Units 1 and 2 would 

front onto Fleming Way, with car parking to the front and their service yards to the rear (south).  Unit 
3 would be positioned further to the south with car parking to its western side and a combined parking 
and service yard to the east. 

 
2.3 Across the Fleming Way site frontage, at the back edge of the existing pavement, a landscaping area 

with some tree planting is to be provided. Further areas of landscaping are proposed along parts of 
the western boundary adjacent to the main Elekta site and to the eastern boundary with the Premier 
Inn and Virgin Atlantic sites. Two existing substations would be relocated within the site.  

 
2.4 It is understood that the proposed Unit 1 would be implemented first, which would be on the site of 

the existing office building Linac House.  The main existing office function for Elekta is located in 
Cornerstone House, where it would remain. The other existing research, development and 
manufacturing uses undertaken by Elekta on the application site would be relocated into this proposed 
new unit.  Units 2 and 3 are speculative and would be subsequently implemented and occupied by 
other businesses. 

 
2.5 The following documents have been submitted in support of the application: 
    

• Acoustic Report 
• Air Quality Assessment  
• Arboricultural Impact Assessment  
• Bird Hazard Management Plan 

Page 36

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



• BREEAM Assessment  
• Design and Access Statement  
• Ecology Report and Biodiversity Metric Assessment  
• Energy Strategy 
• Environmental Site Assessment, Ground Investigation Report and Remediation Strategy  
• Fire Strategy Report 
• Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy , plus Construction Phase Surface Water 

Management Plan 
• Landscape Specifications 
• Noise Impact Assessment  
• Planning Statement  
• Statement of Community Involvement  
• Sustainability Statement  
• Transport Assessment  and  Road Safety Audit (and later Addendum)  
• Travel Plan 
• Utilities Report  
• Ventilation and Extraction Statement 
• Water Neutrality Statement  

 
2.6 The proposal has been revised since submission, with changes from the initial erection of a pair of 

buildings to 3 separate buildings as now proposed, and consequent revisions to the design of the 
buildings, reduction in the floorspace and the number of parking spaces. The landscaping areas have 
been enhanced and the layout of the service yards rationalised.     

 
PLANNING HISTORY:- 
 
3.1 The application site (Linac House and adjoining land) and that immediately adjacent (Cornerstone 

Hose) are occupied by Elekta Limited and have an extensive planning history. Planning permission 
was originally granted in 1958 for a factory on the Elekta land that also included Thales to the south. 
Since this time there has been a number of industrial, office, storage and other ancillary developments 
on the application site and that adjoining to the west.  

 
3.2 More recent relevant applications include: 
 
The application site  -  Linac House and adjoining land/buildings  

CR/739/68  
 

ERECTION OF 5 STOREY OFFICE BLOCK 
WITH ROOF PLANT ROOM AND 
EXTENSION TO EXISTING PRODUCTION 
BUILDING COMPRISING STORAGE AND 
DISPATCH WITH 2  FLOORS OF 
ATTENDANT OFFICES OVER 

Permit  

CR/2013/0281/FUL CHANGE OF USE OF WAREHOUSE SPACE 
FROM STORAGE/DISTRIBUTION TO 
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, WITH 
EXTERNAL PLANT DECK & ELECTRIC 
SWITCH ROOM EXTENSION AND 
INTERNAL PLANT 

PERMIT 

   
CR/2015/0554/FUL 

 

REFURBISHMENT OF J BUILDING OFFICES 
INCLUDING REPLACEMENT WINDOWS, 
INSULATING RENDER AND METAL 
SCREEN FACINGS 

PERMIT 

   
CR/2016/0345/FUL DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING TWO 

STOREY PREFABRICATED 
CANTEEN/OFFICE BUILDING AND SITING 

PERMIT 

Page 37

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



OF A TEMPORARY TWO STOREY 
MODULAR PORTAKABIN BUILDING TO BE 
USED AS A CANTEEN/OFFICE FACILITY 
(FOR A PERIOD OF 5 YEARS) 

   
CR/2021/0663/FUL 

 

DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING TWO 
STOREY PREFABRICATED 
CANTEEN/OFFICE BUILDING AND 
INSTALLATION OF A TEMPORARY SINGLE 
STOREY MODULAR PORTAKABIN 
BUILDING AS A REPLACEMENT. THE 
BUILDING WILL BE HIRED FROM 
PORTAKABIN LTD FOR A PERIOD OF 5 
YEARS AND WILL CONTINUE TO BE USED 
AS A CANTEEN/OFFICE FACILITY. 

WITHDRAWN 

 

Cornerstone House 

CR/2014/0760/FUL ERECTION OF TWO OFFICE BUILDINGS, A 
FOUR AND A HALF STOREY DECKED CAR 
PARK, A SINGLE STOREY DECKED CAR 
PARK AND SURFACE CAR PARKING WITH 
LANDSCAPING AND NEW ACCESS FROM 
PRIVATE ROADS LINKING TO FLEMING 
WAY AND LONDON ROAD 

PERMIT 

 
PLANNING POLICY:- 
 
4.1 National Planning Policy Framework (2023)  
  

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that the purpose of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. In achieving this the planning system has 
three overarching objectives which are interdependent and need to be secured in mutually supportive 
ways. These are an economic objective, a social objective and an environmental objective.  

 
• Section 2 –  Achieving sustainable development. This section states that achieving sustainable  
development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives: an economic 
objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, a social objective – to support 
strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes 
can be provided to meet the needs of present and future generations, and an environmental objective 
to contribute to protecting and enhancing our natural, built and historic environment. This includes 
making effective use of land, helping to improve biodiversity and addressing climate change.  

 
• Section 4 (Decision-making) – This section states that Local Planning Authorities should approach 
decisions in a positive and creative way, seeking to approve applications for sustainable development 
where possible. It encourages pre-application engagement and states that decisions should be made 
as quickly as possible. Weight should be given to emerging policies, depending on the stage of 
preparation of the emerging plan, the extent of unresolved objections and the degree of consistency 
with the NPPF. 

 
• Section 6 –   Building a strong, competitive economy emphasises the need for the planning system  
to help create conditions where businesses can invest, expand and adapt in order to support the need 
for economic growth and productivity. Significant weight should be placed on the need to support 
economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider 
opportunities for development.  

 
• Section 9 (Promoting sustainable transport) – This section states that the potential impact upon 
transport networks should be addressed and that opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public 

Page 38

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



transport use should be pursued. Adverse impacts should be mitigated. Significant development 
should be focused on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to 
travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes. This can help to reduce congestion and 
emissions, and improve air quality and public health. All developments that will generate significant 
amounts of movement should be required to provide a travel plan.  

 
• Section 12 – Achieving well-designed and beautiful places. The creation of high quality buildings 
and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. Good 
design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work 
and helps make development acceptable to communities. Development that is not well designed 
should be refused.  

 
• Section 14 – Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change. In addition to  
supporting the increased use of renewable and low carbon energy and reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions, including complying with local sustainability requirements, flood risk should not be 
increased elsewhere and sustainable drainage systems should be incorporated in major 
developments. 

  
• Section 15 – Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. Planning policies and decisions  
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment, including minimising impacts on 
and providing measurable net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological 
networks, and enhanced public access. Development should not add to or be at risk from pollution.  

 
4.2 Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 – 2030 (adopted December 2015)  
 

Policy SD1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) The Council will take a positive 
approach, in line with the planned approach to Crawley new town, to approving development which 
is sustainable and work proactively with applicants, stakeholders and other partners to find solutions. 
Development will be supported where it meets strategic objectives including becoming carbon neutral 
and addressing climate change; complementing the town’s compact character and neighbourhood 
principles; respecting heritage; protecting and enhancing Green Infrastructure; creating a safe 
environment; providing for social and economic needs; and according with the Plan’s policies and 
objectives. 

 
Policy CH2 (Principles of Good Urban Design) Proposals must support locally distinctive 
development patterns, landscape character and heritage; create defined frontages and public/private 
areas; create safe and attractive routes for all; connect places for people and integrate land use and 
transport; provide recognisable routes and landmarks; consider flexible development which responds 
to changing needs; provide diversity and choice to create viable places and meet local needs. 

 
Policy CH3 (Normal Requirements of all New Development) Development should be based on a 
thorough understanding of the significance and distinctiveness of the site and its wider context and 
demonstrate how attractive or important features of the site will be retained. These include views, 
landmarks, footpaths, rights of way, trees, green spaces, hedges, other historic landscape features 
or nature conservation assets, walls and buildings. Developments will also need to be of high quality 
in terms of their urban, landscape and architectural design and relate sympathetically to their 
surroundings in terms of scale, density, height, massing, orientation, views, landscape, layout, details 
and materials. Development should also provide/retain a good standard of amenity for future 
occupants and not cause harm to the amenity of the surrounding area, including through traffic 
generation and general activity. Development should demonstrate compliance with Secured by 
Design and meet the requirements for its safe and proper use, in particular in regard to access, 
circulation and manoeuvring and in this case vehicle parking. Individual or groups of trees that 
contribute positively to the area should be retained and, where any are lost, replacement tree planting 
should accord with the standards set out in policy CH6.  

 
Policy CH4 (Comprehensive Development and Efficient use of Land) Development proposals must 
use land efficiently and not unduly restrict the development potential of adjoining land, nor prejudice 
the proper planning and phasing of development. 

 

Page 39

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



Policy CH6 (Tree Planting and Replacement Standards) Sets out that where development would 
result in the loss of trees, these should be identified and replaced to mitigate the visual impact from 
the loss of canopies. The requirement for replacement trees is based on the size of the trees to be 
lost and this is expected to take place on site or be subject to commuted payments for planting 
elsewhere. The Manor Royal Design Guide sets out tree planting requirements for that area. 

 
Policy CH8 (Important Views) requires the Important Views identified on the Local Plan Map to be 
protected and/or enhanced and development proposals should not result in an direct adverse impact 
or lead to the erosion of these views. The site is within a long distance view display from Target Hill 
and Tilgate Park. 

 
Policy EC1 (Sustainable Economic Growth) This policy supports Crawley’s role as the key economic 
driver for the Gatwick Diamond area and supports business growth. The policy seeks to ensure that 
Crawley’s recognised economic role and function is maintained and enhanced through building upon 
and protecting the established role of Manor Royal as the key Business (B1), General Industry (B2) 
and Storage and Distribution (B8) location for Crawley and ensuring that it is the focus for sustainable 
economic growth. The policy sets out the need for approximately 23 hectares of employment land 
over the plan period. 

 
Policy EC2 (Economic Growth in Main Employment Areas) recognises the significant contribution 
that the town’s employment areas make to its economy and that of the wider area, and protects 
against net loss of employment floorspace.  Where proposals involve a net loss of employment 
floorspace they will only be permitted where the site is no longer suitable, viable or appropriate for 
employment purposes and, the loss of any floorspace will result in a wider social, economic or 
environmental benefit to the town and there in no adverse impact on the economic role or function of 
the Main Employment Area and wider economic function of Crawley. 

 
Policy EC3 (Manor Royal) Manor Royal is the principal business location for Crawley, and 
instrumental to the success of the wider Gatwick Diamond. Development that is compatible with the 
area’s economic function and role in the wider sub-region will be permitted where it falls within the B 
Use Class and would result in the reuse, intensification, or change of use of the land or buildings. 
Proposals that are not for B Use Class development will be permitted at Manor Royal if it can be 
demonstrated that they are of a scale and function that enhances the established role and business 
function of Manor Royal and would not undermine the business district. All development at Manor 
Royal should contribute positively to the overall setting and environment of the Main Employment 
Area as a business district through high quality design and landscaping that is in accordance with the 
Manor Royal Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
Policy ENV1 (Green Infrastructure) states that Crawley’s multi-functional green infrastructure network 
will be conserved and enhanced through a number of measures including maximising opportunities 
to maintain and extend infrastructure links and requiring large proposals to provide new, or create 
links to, green infrastructure where possible. 

 
Policy ENV2 (Biodiversity) All development will be expected to incorporate biodiversity features 
where appropriate and enhance existing features of nature conservation value around the 
development. 

 
Policy ENV6 (Sustainable Design and Construction) All development must consider how it can 
address sustainability through reducing energy consumption, using renewable and low carbon 
energy, improving existing buildings when adding extensions, minimising carbon emissions during 
development and ensuring embedded carbon is retained and considering District Heat Networks, 
water stress and temperature extremes. A Sustainability Statement should be submitted 
demonstrating how sustainability has been addressed through design and construction. 

 
Policy ENV7 (District Energy Networks) Major developments within a Priority Area for District Heat 
Networks should demonstrate how they have addressed the hierarchy supporting creation of 
networks. Manor Royal is identified on the Proposals Map as a Priority Area. 

 
Policy ENV8 (Development and Flood Risk). Development proposals must avoid areas which are 
exposed to an unacceptable risk from flooding and must not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere.  

Page 40

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



 
Policy ENV9 (Tackling Water Stress) Non-residential development, where technically feasible and 
viable, should meet BREEAM Excellent including addressing maximum water efficiencies under the 
mandatory water credits. 

 
Policy ENV10 (Pollution Management and Land Contamination) ensures that new development does 
not increase levels of pollution or hazards and is appropriate to its location. Where a site may be at 
risk from contaminants or hazardous materials, information must be provided on how the risk will be 
addressed and pollution treated or removed. 

 
Policy ENV11 (Development and Noise) states that people’s quality of life will be protected from 
unacceptable noise impacts by managing the relationship  between noise sensitive development  and 
noise sources. 

 
Policy ENV12 (Air Quality) states that proposals that do not have a negative impact on air quality will 
normally be permitted. 

 
Policy IN1 (Infrastructure Provision) Development must be supported by necessary on and off site 
infrastructure, including mitigation where needed, to avoid harmful impact upon existing infrastructure. 

 
Policy IN2 (Strategic Delivery of Telecommunications Infrastructure) requires proposals to be 
connected to high quality communications infrastructure. 

 
Policy IN3 (Development and Requirements for Sustainable Transport) Development should be 
focussed to achieve sustainable transport through use of public transport, walking and cycling. 
Development should meet the access needs generated and not have unacceptable impact on 
congestion or highway safety. Proposals should be supported by a Transport Statement/Assessment. 

 
Policy IN4 (Car and Cycle Parking Standards) Proposals should provide the appropriate car and 
cycle parking required by supplementary guidance. 

 
4.3 Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023 - 2040 
 

Following the close of the Local Plan Examination Hearings, receipt of the Inspectors’ Post-Hearing 
letter (dated 31 January 2024) and the publication of the Main Modifications for formal public 
consultation, the emerging Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040 has reached a very advanced 
stage. Due to this advanced stage, the up-to-date evidence supporting the emerging Local Plan and 
the clear indications provided in the Inspectors’ Post-Hearing letter, the policies in the emerging Local 
Plan should be given substantial weight. This should only differ where there is a Main Modification 
proposed to the policy element being applied. The following policies are relevant: 

  
• Policy SD1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
• Policy CL2: Making Successful Places: Principles of Good Urban Design  
• Policy CL3: Movement Patterns, Layout and Sustainable Urban Design  
• Policy CL4: Compact Development - Layout, Scale and Appearance  
• Policy CL7: Important and Valued Landscape and Views  
• Policy DD1: Normal Requirements of All New Development  
• Policy DD4: Tree Replacement Standards 
• Policy DD5: Aerodrome Safeguarding  
• Policy IN1: Infrastructure Provision  
• Policy IN3: Supporting High Quality Communications  
• Policy EC1: Sustainable Economic Growth  
• Policy EC2: Economic Growth in Main Employment Areas  
• Policy EC3: Manor Royal 
• Policy EC5: Employment and Skills Development  
• Policy GI1: Green Infrastructure 
• Policy GI3: Biodiversity and Net Gain  
• Policy SDC1: Sustainable Design and Construction  
• Policy SDC2: District Energy Networks  

Page 41

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



• Policy SDC3: Tackling Water Stress  
• Policy SDC4: Water Neutrality 
• Policy EP1: Development and Flood Risk  
• Policy EP3: Land and Water Quality 
• Policy EP4: Development and Noise  
• Policy EP5: Air Quality 
• Policy EP6: External Lighting 
• Policy ST1: Development and Requirements for Sustainable Transport  
• Policy ST2: Car and Cycle Parking Standards  

 
4.4 Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

The following supplementary planning documents are also applicable to the development of this site:  
 

Planning and Climate Change SPD – Adopted October 2016 
This provides further guidance on addressing the sustainability policies within the Local Plan, with 
examples of best practice and how to demonstrate compliance with the policies. 

 
Green Infrastructure SPD – Adopted October 2016 
This SPD provides further guidance on new and replacement tree planting, protection of existing  
trees, biodiversity and wider landscaping issues. 

 
Urban Design SPD – Adopted October 2016 
This document provides further advice on the principles of good urban design in the Crawley context, 
highlighting in particular the importance of massing and materials, public realm, street design and 
parking  and sustainable design. 

 
In respect of non-residential development, para 3.62 states: 
“The layout of non-residential development is particularly important to their success. This should 
address the street and the public realm in a considerate manner and not turn their back on the 
existing streetscape and layout of the town. The appropriate scale and massing of the 
development will depend on the location and existing urban fabric. Active frontages are particularly 
important to the vitality of the streetscape and the success of commercial and retail uses and 
should be incorporated within the design from the start”. 

 
For industrial and commercial development consideration should be made of appropriate materials, 
colours and massing to improve the architectural language (as buildings are often designed 
functionally with little architectural merit). Greater consideration of the layout of the buildings to the 
street is encouraged along with opportunities to improve the urban environment and use of 
landscaping. 

 
Annex 1 of the SPD contains the Borough’s indicative minimum parking standards.   

 
Manor Royal Design Guide SPD and Public Realm Strategy – Adopted July 2013 
This document aims to support economic growth in Manor Royal, providing guidance to ensure that 
new development makes a significant contribution to the uplift of the area and secures delivery of high 
quality development which supports the key business function. It requires all development to 
demonstrate the following: 

 
• New buildings to be of high quality urban design 
• Proposals seek to provide active frontages to routes 
• Materials and finishes of good quality and support the principles of identity and sustainability 
• Proposals to achieve a high level of security 
• Surface water drainage considered 
• Water efficiency measures considered 
• The development must positively contribute to the landscape and identity of Manor Royal. 

 
The document emphasises the importance of landscaping as a key consideration in creating a sense 
of place for Manor Royal and improving the quality of the public realm. A key approach to delivering 

Page 42

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



these improvements is achieving robust and consistent frontages to improve the quality of the 
environment. It requires parking and servicing to be adequate to meet the needs of the development 
and to consider landscaping and seek to reduce monotonous surfacing of parking areas. Boundary 
treatments must be appropriate in scale and context, with landscaping to reduce the visual impact of 
fences and barriers. 

 
Fleming Way is identified as a primary road and the application site is covered by specific guidance 
set out under sections 3.1 and 3.1.2 in the document. The SPD sets out expectations in terms of 
landscaping, tree planting and appropriate distances that buildings should be set back. 

 
The site is identified as being within the Core Business Zone Character Area A. Key considerations 
that proposed development in such locations should seek to address are to: 

 
• maintain the spacious setting of buildings; 
• build on the positive impact of high quality public realm and development through promoting 

high quality buildings that also improve the private realm; 
• provide active frontages, high quality materials, and planting of high aesthetic quality and 
• durability; and 
• given the spacious and prominent nature of the area, explore the potential for taller buildings 

with due regard to the safeguarding requirements of Gatwick Airport. 
 

Developer Contributions Guidance Note (published July 2016) 
This sets out the Council’s approach to developer contributions following the introduction of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy. It provides details of the CIL charges and when S106 contributions 
will be sought. 

 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:- 
 
5.1 The key issues for consideration are: 
 

• The principle of the development 
• Design and Layout 
• Highways and parking 
• Neighbouring Amenity 
• Sustainability 
• Trees, ecology and landscaping 
• Water neutrality 
• Air Quality and Noise 
• Contaminated Land 
• Drainage and Flood Risk 
• Gatwick Airport Safeguarding  
• Infrastructure and developer contributions 

 
Principle of development  
 
5.2  The application site is situated within the Manor Royal Main Employment Area as defined by 

adopted Local Plan economic policies EC1, EC2 and EC3 and draft Local Plan policies EC1, EC2 
and EC3. It is worth noting that the adopted and draft policies set out very similar criteria and 
requirements in terms of this proposal.  

 
5.3 Local Plan Policy EC1 and its supporting text set out an overarching policy position to ensure that 

Crawley’s recognised economic role and function is maintained and enhanced, retaining the 
available supply of employment land in order to support, and not undermine, economic growth. The 
policy identifies a requirement for an additional 57.9ha of business land in Crawley over the Plan 
period to 2030. Given Crawley’s constrained land supply position, the policy identifies an available 
business land supply pipeline of 23ha, and therefore a business land supply shortfall of 35ha over 
the Plan period to 2030. 

 

Page 43

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



5.4 Draft Local Plan Strategic Policy EC1 seeks to protect and enhance Crawley’s role as the key 
economic driver for the Coast to Capital and Gatwick Diamond, identifying suitable opportunities 
within the borough to enable existing and new businesses to grow and prosper. The policy identifies 
a need for a minimum of 26.2ha new business land in Crawley over the Plan period to 2040, 
principally within the B8 storage & distribution sectors. Taking off opportunities identified in the 
Employment Land Trajectory (Base Date 31 March 2023), the outstanding requirement is for 
industrial land, substantially for B8 storage & distribution uses, where there is need for a minimum 
17.93ha. This need is principally to be met through the Gatwick Green Strategic Employment 
Allocation, though the policy is clear that Crawley’s economic role and function should be supported 
through a range of opportunities. This includes (as relevant to this application) building upon and 
protecting the established role of Manor Royal as the key mixed business location for Crawley at the 
heart of the Gatwick Diamond and Coast to Capital areas; protecting and enhancing the Main 
Employment Areas for economic growth; and encouraging the redevelopment and intensification of 
under-utilised sites in Main Employment Areas for employment use.  

 
5.5 The scarcity of available employment land within the Borough and subsequent business land supply 

deficit places particular weight on the need to build upon and protect the role of the designated main 
employment areas, with Manor Royal being identified as a key business location for Crawley and 
Gatwick Diamond. Specific reference to Manor Royal is made in part i.) of policy EC1 which states 
that the objective is to ‘build upon and protect the established role of Manor Royal as the key 
business location (B Use Classes) for Crawley at the Heart of the Gatwick Diamond’. The 
overarching policy position is therefore to retain the available supply of business land in order to 
support business-led economic growth.  

 
5.6 In general terms, the proposal would retain a business use on the site in compliance with adopted 

Policy EC1 and emerging Policy EC1. However, the proposed redevelopment of the site, whilst 
retaining its employment use, would result in the net loss of employment floorspace from 13,449 
sqm to 10,309sqm, a reduction of 4270sqm. Adopted Local Plan Policy EC2 and draft Policy EC2 
both recognise the significant contribution made to the economy of Crawley and the wider sub 
region by the designated Main Employment Areas. The policies also set out criteria that must be 
satisfied where a net loss of employment floorspace is proposed. These are that the i) site is no 
longer suitable, viable or appropriate for employment purposes; ii) the loss of any floorspace will 
result in a wider social, environmental or economic benefit to the town;  and iii) there is no adverse 
impact on the economic role or function of the Main Employment Area, and wider economic function 
of Crawley. 

 
5.7 The applicant has provided supporting information to explain the rationale for the net reduction in 

floorspace. This sets out that the proposed development is proposed as part of a wider 
redevelopment of the Elekta campus. Of the buildings currently on site, Linac House (offices) has 
been vacant since Elekta relocated to its new HQ on the neighbouring Cornerstone site and is 
considered to be no longer fit for purpose. The remaining buildings on-site are also used by Elekta, 
for manufacturing and assembly, research & development, and training. The statement sets out that 
the site in its current form is not being optimised in terms of its development potential and, whilst the 
proposed development would result in a net loss of employment floorspace, it would enable delivery 
of Unit 1 that would specifically meet Elekta’s needs. It would also deliver two new B8 storage & 
distribution warehouses for general use. 

 
5.8 Having reviewed the supporting information, it is considered that although the proposal would result 

in some loss of employment floorspace, redevelopment of the site would bring about its wider 
improvement as an employment location, supporting the economic function of Manor Royal and that 
of Crawley. More broadly, the development would support the retention and growth of an existing 
Manor Royal business and would provide higher quality floorspace that would contribute to meeting 
the significant B8 floorspace need in Crawley. It is therefore considered that the criteria of adopted 
and emerging Policies EC2 are met. 

 
5.9 Building on the approach of adopted and emerging Policies EC1 and EC2, adopted and emerging 

Policies EC3 emphasise the specific importance of Manor Royal as the principal business location 
for Crawley and the wider Gatwick Diamond. The policies place a clear focus on the delivery of 
business uses in Manor Royal, seeking to protect and reinforce its core business function by 

Page 44

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



promoting development within the B use classes, and encouraging the reuse and intensification of 
land or buildings within the main employment area. 

 
5.10 The proposed scheme, in redeveloping the site to provide improved business floorspace for an 

existing and also potential new occupiers, is consistent with the EC3 policy objectives, adding to the 
overall stock and range of premises at Manor Royal, and helping strengthen its overall offer as a 
business district. 

 
5.11 Policy EC3 also requires development at Manor Royal to contribute positively to the overall setting 

and environment of Manor Royal as a business district through high quality design and landscaping 
that is in accordance with the Manor Royal Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document. The 
design and appearance of the proposal is discussed in more detail below, but overall the scheme 
offers the opportunity to replace the existing structures with those of a more contemporary approach 
and provide more landscaping across the site.  

 
5.12  Emerging Policy EC5 requires major development to contribute to meeting objectives set out in the 

most up-to-date Crawley Employment and Skills Programme. This will be achieved through: 
 

i. Committing at the planning application stage to prepare and submit a site-specific 
Employment and Skills Plan. This will detail how the development, through its 
construction and (for commercial development where there is a known occupier) end 
user phases, will support initiatives identified in the Crawley Employment and Skills 
Programme.  

ii. The making of a proportionate financial contribution towards employment and skills 
initiatives in Crawley. 

 
5.13 Accordingly an Employment and Skills Plan will be required for the development and is to be 

secured through a S106 legal agreement. The financial contributions apply to schemes that involve 
a net increase in gross internal area in excess of 1,000sqm.  In this case, the application would not 
result in a net increase in the gross internal area (rather, it is a net loss of floorspace), so a financial 
contribution is not required in this instance. The proposal is a substantial redevelopment of the site 
though and an Employment and Skills Plan is appropriate to benefit local people and the economy. 

   
5.14 To conclude on this issue, in proposing new business floorspace within Manor Royal Business 

District, the proposal reflects the objectives of the adopted and draft Local Plan Policies EC1, EC2 
and EC3, adding to the overall business land supply pipeline in Crawley. Both Policies EC3 are 
supportive of all B Class uses, including B1 (office) – now Class E(g), B2 (general industry) or B8 
(storage & distribution) uses and, in providing modern new units that would support the core 
business role and function of Manor Royal, the principle of business units on this site is supported.  

 
5.15 More broadly, the proposal responds to NPPF objectives to support business and plan positively for 

sustainable economic growth, and the principle of business-led redevelopment of the site is 
supported in this regard. 

 
5.16 In principle therefore, the redevelopment of this currently vacant site and the proposed increase in 

employment floorspace is welcomed and is in accordance with national and local planning policies.  
 
Design and Layout 
 
5.17 The site is in a prominent location along Fleming Way, positioned between Cornerstone House and 

the Premier Inn Hotel. The five existing buildings on the site would be demolished, including the 5 
storey Linac House. The proposal is for a phased redevelopment to form 3 low rise 
industrial/warehouse type buildings with a bespoke design.  

 
5.18 Adopted policies CH2, CH3 and EC3 require that all development should contribute positively to the 

overall setting and environment of Manor Royal through high quality design and landscaping. Draft 
Local Plan policies CL2, CL3 and DD1 continue to stress the importance of high quality design and 
also highlight matters such as making effective use of urban land, creating strong and active 
frontages and addressing movement routes. Policies EC3 within both the adopted and draft Local 
Plans specifically make reference to the Manor Royal Design Guide SPD and afford this document 

Page 45

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



significant weight. The design of any development at this site will need to be carefully considered at 
this prominent location, particularly given its highly visible frontage onto Fleming Way which is 
identified in the Manor Royal SPD as a Primary Road. 

 
5.19 The key design aspects to be considered for this site are the need for a high quality design, with 

appropriate high quality materials and detailing to reflect the Manor Royal business character, that 
addresses the road frontage, combined with suitable SPD compliant planting proposals along the 
road frontage, within the site and between adjoining sites. There is also a need to ensure the car 
parking and servicing areas are appropriately located away from key views. 

 
5.20 The Manor Royal SPD states that buildings fronting Fleming Way should be set back from the site 

boundary by a minimum of 10m and that the minimum depth of on-site planting should be 4m. It 
specifies that this should form shrub planting across the entire Primary Road frontage with fastigiate 
trees at 15m spacing. ‘Fastigiate’ trees are those with parallel, erect, clustered branches or trees 
with narrow crowns.  

 
5.21 The proposed development has evolved during the consideration of the application to address the 

need for a high quality design, an active frontage onto Fleming Way and to provide an appropriate 
scale and form of development at this location in Manor Royal. Currently, the existing scale, height 
and massing of Linac House, gives the site a significant visual presence and helps to avoid this 
primary road within Manor Royal being perceived as just an access road to unattractive commercial 
buildings. The site is situated just outside one of the primary Manor Royal gateways at the London 
Road roundabout. As such, its current prominent office building volume is experienced from one of 
the key entry points into Manor Royal when facing east along Fleming Way. Along with the adjoining 
buildings to the west at the roundabout, it helps to enhance the urban structure and the first 
impression of Manor Royal, confirming the area as a premium business location where there is a 
mix and contrast of commercial activity.   

 
5.22 As originally submitted, the proposals were for a single building at the front to house Units 1 and 2, 

with Unit 3 to the rear. They were of a typical low rise warehouse design with some glazing to the 
front entrances. Officers had concerns that, as Units 1 & 2 were set between the higher Cornerstone 
House and the Premier Inn and due to the significant width of the site, the relatively low height of the 
proposed single building looked out of place in this context. It was suggested that the inclusion of 
further architectural features and articulation to improve the scale and massing of the buildings, 
introducing or extending the glazing elements to the front corners of the building and the design of 
the canopies would assist in improving the scheme. In addition, it was considered that setting the 
buildings back from the side boundaries more, thus reducing the width, and some differentiation in 
height, along with other design features, would address the site frontage and the overall character 
of Fleming Way in a more satisfactory manner. 

 
5.23 In this regard, the scheme as now presented is for 2 separate buildings to the front. Unit 1 would be 

the widest and sit forward of Unit 2, which would introduce a stagger across the site frontage. The 
overall width of the built form has been reduced, by this separation of the units, reducing the 
footprint of Unit 2 and setting Unit 1 further from the eastern boundary. The breakup of the overall 
volume has helped to add some visual interest and contrast in form, and the staggering of the two 
buildings fronting Fleming Way serves to provide a somewhat finer grain than was the case with the 
original substantial single east - west volume.   Unit 3 has also has a smaller footprint, with a larger 
separation gap to the eastern boundary, which allows for the incorporation of more landscaping.  

 
5.24 Whilst these are commercial/warehouse buildings, they do include ancillary office accommodation. 

The design of the office areas to the front to the units have been enhanced, so that they form an 
‘office pod’ with additional and revised glazing, more architectural detailing and contrasting cladding. 
The materials are metal cladding in a colour palette of a mix of greys, with dark grey to the front of 
the office element and grey aluminium to the remainder of the front elevations and light grey colours 
to the side and rear elevations, and window frames in anthracite grey, with feature flashing in a 
contrasting mustard colour. The effective height has also been increased using a raised parapet 
feature, in the darker grey colour, which screens the lower roof structure of the warehouse element 
of the building.  As a result, the Unit 1 office element does successfully appear more prominent 
along the road frontage and has more of a visual presence. Unit 3 has a more typical warehouse 
design and does not have the parapet feature but glazing has been incorporated into the front office 

Page 46

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



element to differentiate this from the warehouse part. As this building would be set to the rear of the 
site  and would be screened by Units 1 and 2, views from Fleming Way would be very limited and it 
is considered that this design approach for Unit 3 is acceptable. 

 
5.25 The siting of the buildings complies with the Manor Royal SPD, with Unit 1 being set some 22m back 

from the site boundary and Unit 2 being set back 30m. The car parking areas to the front between the 
buildings and the site boundary have been amended. The landscaping along Fleming Way has been 
strengthened and reinforced, so that it is more organic in design and shape, and includes a ‘pocket 
park’ rather than just a straight strip of planting to the front of the car parking area, as originally 
submitted. The minimum depth of planting is 4m, but this widens out to 26m at the western end of the 
frontage. This perception could be enhanced by a denser group of semi mature trees to the west of 
the Unit 1 office entrance which would effectively screen Unit 2. It is noted that there are 
inconsistencies between the landscaping details shown on the site plan, the planting plans and the 
landscape masterplan. In these circumstances the details of the landscaping are not to be approved 
at this stage, but can be secured by condition requiring the submission of detailed landscaping 
proposals  for subsequent approval   

 
5.26 In addition, both Units 1 and 2 now have a hard and soft landscaped ‘arrival plaza‘ by their front 

entrances. Furthermore, Unit 1 has been set further away from the access road that runs along the 
eastern boundary and this additional space has given an opportunity for increased soft landscaping 
and an external amenity space to this side elevation. This has also allowed the sub stations to be 
relocated away from the Fleming Road frontage and incorporated into this landscaping area. 

 
5.27 With regard to the possible impact in terms of long distance views from Target Hill and Tilgate Park, 

as identified by Local Policy CH8, the proposed development would be lower in height than the 
existing Linac House that they would be replacing and therefore the proposal would have less of an 
impact than the current situation. As such the scheme would not adversely impact on the long 
distance views. 

 
5.28 Overall these design changes provide an improved active frontage for the development onto 

Fleming Way, with more legible entrances and which increase the permeability from the main road.  
The design and layout of the scheme as now submitted is appropriate within the context of the Main 
Employment Area and, in particular, its location along Fleming Way. It is considered that the 
development would create a high quality public realm with the enhanced landscaping proposals. As 
such the scheme would accord with the relevant design policies within the Crawley Borough Local 
Plan and the Manor Royal SPD. 

 
Highways and parking 
 
5.29 The site is located on Fleming Way, which forms a key and busy east-west link across the Manor 

Royal Business District. Fleming Way (30mph) is street lit with footways and on-carriageway cycle 
lanes. To the west is County Oak Roundabout which provides a link to A23 with Lowfield Heath/ 
Gatwick Airport to the north and Crawley town centre to the south. To the east Fleming Way joins 
with Gatwick Road. 

 
5.30 The existing vehicle/ pedestrian access from Fleming Way would be widened to 8m, with 10m 

kerbed radii and narrowing to 7.3m within the site to accommodate 2-way HGV movement. The 
existing on-street cycle lane would be maintained. Visibility splays in excess of the required 43m for 
30mph (Manual for Streets) can be achieved. HGV and large van swept path tracking at the access 
have been adequately demonstrated.  

 
5.31 WSCC Highways advise that for car movements, due to the reduction in office floorspace, a 'severe' 

increase in vehicle trips to and from the site is not anticipated.  In regard to HGV movements, there 
would be an additional 12 in the am peak period and 7 in the pm peak period and therefore a 
significant increase. However, given the likely distribution across the local highway network, WSCC 
Highways consider that the increase in HGV movements would not be at a 'severe' level and would 
not detrimentally impact the capacity operation of the nearby road network. It is recommended that 
the access works are secured by a s106 legal agreement with conditions to cover a construction 
management plan, vehicle parking/turning and cycle parking.  

 

Page 47

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



5.32 In terms of parking, the following table sets out the relevant parking requirement for the proposals, 
based on the plans received and using the standards in the Urban Design SPD document which are 
adopted Borough standards.  

 
UNIT FLOORSPACE STANDARD  PROPOSED 
  Type Quantum Quantum 
Unit 1 
B2 use 

3258sqm Cars  
Accessible spaces 5% 
Lorries  
Cycles     staff 
                visitors 
Motorcycles  

81 
4 
7 
16 
7 
9 

81 
4 
2 
22 
7 
9 

Unit 2 
B8 use 

2234sqm Cars  
Accessible spaces 5% 
Lorries  
Cycles    staff 
               visitors 
Motorcycles  

23 
1 
5 
5 
3 
4 

23 
1 
6 
22 
7 
4 

Unit 3 
B8 Use 

3687sqm Cars   
Accessible spaces 5% 
Lorries  
Cycles    staff 
               visitors 
Motorcycles  

39 
2 
7 
6 
4 
5 

39 
2 
 7 
25 
8 
5 

TOTAL 9179sqm Cars  
Accessible spaces 5% 
Lorries  
Cycles   staff 
              visitors 
Motorcycles  

143 
7 
19 
27 
14 
18 

143 
7 
15 
69  
22  
18 

 
5.33 The proposal, with a total of 143 car parking spaces shown, would meet the requirements for the 

proposed B2 and B8 uses.  Units 1 and 2 would have a parking areas to the front of the site (62 
spaces combined), which has been revised to incorporate more landscaping and includes 6 electric 
vehicle (EV) spaces and 5 accessible spaces. There is also car parking to the rear of these units (40 
for Unit 1 and 2 for Unit 2), within their service yard areas. The car parking arrangements for Unit 3 
are predominantly to the east side of the building (35 spaces, including 2 EV spaces and 2 
accessible spaces), with 4 spaces to the west side adjacent to its service yard. All the car parking 
spaces are to be future proofed by having ducting installed to allow for future EV charging point 
activation. 

 
5.34 There would be a shortfall in lorry parking spaces for Unit 1 of 5 spaces. However, this building is to 

be occupied by Elekta, who already operate from the site. They have advised that, based on their 
existing operation, the unit will receive approximately 15 deliveries across a day. Approximately 
60% (9) of these are to be by vans with only 40% (6) by HGVs. With regards outgoing goods, two 
HGVs are predicted per day at approximately 1am and 1pm. Given these specific circumstances 
and the known occupier, the full lorry parking requirement is not considered necessary for Unit 1. 

 
5.35 The amount of bicycle parking significantly exceeds the standards and is welcomed. During the 

application process, the location of these facilities have been repositioned so that now they are 
more conveniently located for the staff and visitor entrances to each building, with some having a 
green roof structure.  

 
5.36 Motorcycle spaces are shown to the east of the site, along the eastern side of the access road for 

Units 1 and 2, and within the parking area for Unit 3 and meet the standards as required in the 
Urban Design SPD. 

 
5.37 A Travel Plan has been provided with the application and refers to encouraging and promoting 

sustainable transport options, including walking, cycling, public transport, car sharing. It also 
references the provision of the electric vehicle charging spaces, with associated fittings and 

Page 48

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



ductwork. This would be a positive addition and would future proof the development and encourage 
more sustainable forms of private vehicle travel. The final travel plan and the associated monitoring 
fee of £3500 are to be secured by a s106 legal agreement. 

 
5.38 In conclusion, the proposed works to the access and the traffic movements associated with the 3 

units are considered to be acceptable and would not result in an adverse impact in regards to 
highway capacity or safety. The car and cycle parking arrangements are considered to be 
satisfactory, and whilst there would be an under provision of lorry spaces for Unit 1, this is to meet 
the specific needs of the end user (Elekta) and is acceptable in this instance. Therefore, subject to 
the above suggested conditions and the completion of a s106 agreement in regard to the access 
works and Travel Plan, it is considered that the scheme would accord with the relevant development 
plan policies in this regard. 

 
Neighbouring Amenity 
 
5.39 The development site lies within a Main Employment Area. Adopted Local Plan Policy EC4 seeks to 

manage the relationship between employment development and residential amenity. Draft Policy 
EC11 continues this approach and also introduces the ‘agent of change’ principle. Here, 
surrounding uses are generally commercial and therefore less sensitive to impact from the proposal, 
with the main Elekta site (Cornerstone House) to the immediate west. To the immediate east is the 
Premier Inn Hotel fronting onto Fleming Way with Virgin Atlantic premises and Boeing Flight 
Services set to the south east behind the Hotel. To the immediate south are the Thales premises. 

 
5.40 There would be a separation gap of 43m from the west side elevation of the Premier Inn to the east 

side elevation of unit 1. There is glazing proposed on the east elevation of unit 1 to the front office 
section, and the main outlook for the hotel is to the north onto Fleming Way, with only staircase 
windows on the side. Given the distance, the nature of the glazing and the temporary nature of the 
hotel’s occupation, it is not considered that significant adverse impact, through issues such as 
overlooking or overdominance, upon hotel guests would result. Noise impact is addressed below. 

 
5.41 Overall, the relationship to adjoining commercial buildings is considered fairly typical of a major 

employment location like Manor Royal. It is not considered that any significant disturbance or loss of 
amenity would be caused to the adjoining occupiers, including the more sensitive hotel uses.  

 
Sustainability 
 
5.42 Policies ENV6, ENV7 and ENV9 of the adopted Local Plan, draft  policies SDC1, SDC2 and SDC3 

and the Planning & Climate Change SPD are relevant to the proposal from a climate change 
mitigation and adaptation perspective. ENV6 (Sustainable Design and Construction) sets out 
various overarching objectives which development should follow in relation to climate change 
mitigation and adaptation. Policy ENV7 (District Energy Networks) states that major developments 
within a Priority Area for District Heat Networks should demonstrate how they have addressed the 
hierarchy supporting creation of networks. Manor Royal is identified on the Proposals Map as a 
Priority Area. It presents a hierarchy of options ranging from connection to an existing network, 
through the creation of a new network, to designing the development to be network ready. Policy 
ENV9 (Tackling Water Stress) states that non-residential development, where technically feasible 
and viable, should meet BREEAM Excellent including addressing maximum water efficiencies under 
the mandatory water credits.  

 
5.43 The proposal is supported by a Sustainability Statement (including a BREEAM pre-assessment 

scoring summary) and an Energy Strategy, including design-stage Building Regulations 
documentation. These documents identify and detail responses to the relevant policies. They have 
been updated to reflect the introduction of the 2021 version of Part L of the Building Regulations. 
Key elements include: 

• The development proposes to meet (and exceed) the BREEAM requirements 
regarding energy and water efficiency detailed in Policies ENV6 and ENV9; 

• The energy strategy achieves the 2021 Building Regulations standard (including the 
new Primary Energy Requirement) through an approach which includes fabric 
efficiency, energy efficient building services, the provision of large solar PV roof 

Page 49

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



arrays, and the use of air source heat pumps to provide heat to mezzanine office 
areas; 

• The Site Plan identifies routes by which the new units could be connected to a future 
district energy network; 

• The energy strategy is for the most part electricity-based in terms of fuel, the 
exception being the provision of capped gas connections giving the option of using 
gas to provide heating to the warehouse areas, depending on tenant requirements; 
and 

• The scheme incorporates a number of electric vehicle charge points with the 
remaining car parking spaces provided with ducting for future activation. 

 
5.44 The Energy and Sustainability officer is satisfied with these proposals subject to conditions relating 

to the energy and water efficiency measures, the PV panels, district energy network connection  and 
electric vehicle charging spaces. 

 
Trees, ecology and landscaping 
 
5.45 Adopted Local Plan Policies CH2, CH3 and EC3, draft policies CL2, DD1 and EC3, the Manor Royal 

SPD and supporting the Public Realm Strategy places considerable emphasis on enhancing private 
landscaped areas along the road frontages and internally within the sites. Adopted policy ENV2  
and draft policy GI3 states that all development proposals will be expected to incorporate features to 
encourage biodiversity where appropriate, and where possible enhance existing features of nature 
conservation value within and around the development.  

 
5.46  Fleming Way is identified within the Manor Royal Urban Design Guide as a primary road and the 

site is identified as being within the Core Business Zone Character Area A. The SPD sets out 
expectations in terms of landscaping, tree planting and appropriate distances  that buildings should 
be set back and requires planting of high aesthetic quality and durability. 

 
5.47 The application was supported by an Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Ecology Report and 

Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment and Metric Assessment and Landscaping Plans and 
Specifications.  

 
5.48 There are no existing trees on the site itself, but there is a row of 26 trees on the adjacent site to the 

east, along the site access road, which form a linear feature. The trees comprise 23 lime trees, 1 
sycamore, 1 ash and 1 silver birch. Of these arboricultural features,16 are category B  - trees of 
moderate quality and value (with an estimated remaining life expectancy of at least 20 years), 8 are 
category C - trees of low quality and value (with an estimated remaining life expectancy of at least 
10 years or young trees with a stem diameter less than 150mm) and 2 ( lime and ash) are category 
U - trees which are in such a condition that they cannot realistically be retained as living trees in the 
context of the current land use for longer than 10 years.  

 
5.49 None of the  trees will be removed to facilitate the development, but it will be necessary to remove 

and replace the existing hard surfaces either with new hard surfaces or soft landscaping where they 
are within the root protection areas (RPA). Tree protective fencing will be erected within the 
application site and appropriate construction methods used in the RPAs. These aspects can be 
secured by a condition. 

 
5.50 In regard to the ecological impacts of the site, the site comprises four main industrial units and 

outbuildings. The remainder of the site is laid out as a car park and the access road hardstanding, 
with small areas of ornamental shrub and planters. The ecological assessment states that the 
habitats present are considered of importance within the site only. The buildings within the site were 
considered to have negligible suitability for bats. The only potential roosting feature, Linac House, 
was occupied by starlings at the time of the survey. It is highly unlikely that this feature would be 
used by bats at the same time, but further surveys are recommended before demolition occurs  to  
check if there have been any changes in conditions or use.  In terms of breeding birds, starlings, a 
UK priority species listed as red on the Birds of Conservation Concern, were confirmed nesting 
within Linac House, and the remaining buildings and vegetated habitats on site are also suitable for 
breeding birds. A precautionary approach with regards to building demolition and vegetation 
removal should be implemented to include appropriate timings of works to avoid the main breeding 

Page 50

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



season. Two starling nest boxes are to be installed on Unit 1 to compensate for the loss of breeding 
opportunities.  

 
5.51 In regard to biodiversity and ecological enhancements, the existing vegetation, consisting of limited 

areas of ornamental shrubs and planters, will be fully cleared as part of the development proposals. 
Proposed soft landscaping includes areas of flower-rich ornamental planting, wildflower meadow 
turf, mixed-species native hedgerow and new tree planting. 

 
5.52 This landscaping is proposed across the site, predominantly to the front and along the eastern 

boundary. The existing hedge to the northern boundary of the site would be retained and the new 
planting to the site frontage would comprise a fastigiate treeline of 5 upright hornbeam trees 
reinforced with a single-species native hedgerow maintained to 1.2m height, to visually buffer and 
soften the site frontage facing onto Fleming Way whilst also contributing to the biodiversity within 
the site. The trees would be underplanted with a native wildflower meadow grassland that would 
provide additional habitat for insects and invertebrates. The proposed pocket park to the north west 
area of the site, would be include areas of wildflower grassland and native shrub planting, native 
tree planting and native hedges. The park would also comprise a bioretention area forming part of 
the Sustainable Drainage System on site whilst also providing additional habitat in the form of 
wildflower grassland.  Landscaped arrival plazas are proposed for the entrances to units 1 and 2, 
and comprise feature paving enhanced with ornamental planting comprising feature shrubs, 
herbaceous perennials and grasses. 

 
5.53 To the immediate east of Unit 1 a soft landscape bed is proposed to be planted with fastigiate tree 

planting and native wildflower meadow grassland underplanting to buffer and soften views into the 
site from Fleming Way. The eastern boundary of the site would be planted with a mixed-species 
native hedgerow to reinforce the existing trees along the boundary whilst also softening views 
internally to the boundary and providing additional habitat within the site. 

 
5.54 To the rear of the site, around Unit 3, on the western and western boundaries, areas of native shrub 

planting are proposed to the service yard and car parking areas.  
 
5.55 The Ecologist advises that the proposal will provide for a net gain in biodiversity and recommends 

conditions relating to the ecological mitigation and enhancement measures, removal of invasive 
non-native species (wall cotoneaster), and a  biodiversity compensation and enhancement strategy 
for protected and Priority species.    

 
5.56 To conclude on these issues, it is considered that the scheme is acceptable subject to conditions to 

secure the landscaping and ecological measures and would therefore comply with the relevant 
Local Plan Policies and the Manor Royal SPD. 

 
Water neutrality 
 
5.57 New development tends to result in water consumption increasing and Crawley is situated in an 

area of serious water stress. Much of Crawley’s water is sourced from abstraction points within the 
Sussex North Water Resource Zone (SNWRZ) , which drains water from the Arun Valley Special 
Area of Conservation, Special Protection Area and Ramsar Site (all designated sites under the 
Habitats Regulations). 

 
5.58 Natural England is raising a serious concern that such abstraction may be causing significant 

adverse impacts on the biodiversity of such areas, and is highlighting that developments must not 
add to these impacts. The Local Planning Authority received a Position Statement from Natural 
England on 14 September 2021. It raised significant concerns about the impact of water abstraction 
in the SNWRZ upon the protected sites. Consequently, new development within the Water 
Resource Zone is required to be water neutral in order to avoid further adverse impact upon the 
protected habitats and species.  

 
5.59 The applicant has submitted a Water Neutrality Statement addressing both the existing lawful uses 

of the site by Elekta, and the proposal for a B2 unit (for Elekta) and 2 x B8 warehouse units. The 
existing water consumption (baseline water use) has been calculated as 6,401m3 per year, a figure 
which has been assessed and agreed by the Council’s independent consultant, Water Environment.  

Page 51

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



 
5.60 The water consumption within the proposed buildings, based on the proposed uses, the floorspace 

of the buildings, layout and proposed water fittings, total estimated occupancy, hours of operation – 
namely 10 hours per day for 253 days a year for the B2 unit and 24 hours per day for 365 days per 
year for the B8 units, and the BREEAM calculations has been calculated by the applicant, and 
agreed by Water Environment, as 3,074m3 / year. This consumption figure is less than the existing 
uses, being a 52% reduction.  

 
5.61 These calculations do not include an allowance for showers for cyclists or external watering of the 

landscaping. Factoring in the provision of showers and the external watering option, the proposed 
development would consume 4,300 m3/year. This represents a 33% reduction in consumption from 
the baseline, demonstrating that it is comfortably water neutral even in this worst-case scenario.  

 
5.62  In order to secure this level of water use, a condition is recommended requiring submission of 

details of the water fixtures and fittings to be used and their retention for the lifetime of the 
development and a condition relating to the  hours/days of use for Unit 1 (the B2 use). 

 
5.63 The proposed floor plans provided are limited to shell and core details only and therefore it is not 

possible based on the current information to determine whether a permanently staffed canteen will 
be included in any of the replacement buildings. Calculations, at present, do not account for this. 
Small un-staffed kitchenettes used by office staff to re-heat food, make tea or similar are included 
within the present calculations and would be permitted. As the canteen element is unknown at this 
stage, it is considered necessary to limit this by condition and if any were to be provided a revised 
water neutrality statement would be required. 

 
5.64 It is thus considered that the development would be water neutral. However this is subject to a legal 

requirement to complete an Appropriate Assessment and consult with Natural England. It is 
therefore recommended that the proposals are permitted subject to the completion of the Habitats 
Regulations Appropriate Assessment and consultation with Natural England. 

 
Air Quality and Noise 
 
5.65 The site lies some 1.3km from the centre of the Air Quality Management Area ( AQMA) which is 

centred around Hazelwick Roundabout to the south east. The Council’s Air Quality Management 
Officer has reviewed the Air Quality Assessment report and considers that dust emissions during 
construction can be resolved by mitigation measures in accordance with best practice. This can be 
secured by condition.  

 
5.66 In terms of the proposed use, she has advised that whilst the changes in pollutant concentrations 

associated with the operational phase of the proposed development were predicted to be negligible, 
‘the combined impact of similar developments in the area contributes to the cumulative effects on 
air, even when negligible. This may prolong the ability to meet compliance with air quality objectives 
within the AQMA  and/or affect the implementation of action plan measures within an AQMA.’ 

 
5.67 The emissions associated with the proposed development were used to calculate a damage cost 

and identify the appropriate level of mitigation to be provided. The updated emissions assessment 
determined the damage costs at a value of £33,096. This relates to the value of mitigation required 
to offset these adverse effects. It is recommended that these measures are secured by a s106 legal 
agreement in order to address these air quality issues.  The package of measures are a range of  
on-site measures and the submitted report sets out that they could include  EV charging points and 
ducting, PV panels, tree planting, cycle stands, air source heat pumps, showers and the 
appointment of a travel plan co-ordinator. The air quality measures are required to be over and 
above existing policy requirements and so the precise items are to be agreed when this clause of 
the s106 agreement is discharged. 

 
5.68 In respect of noise, a Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted. The Environmental Health 

officer had asked for further information regarding noise impacts for the residents at the Premier Inn 
hotel. This has been provided and he now advises that he has no objection subject to conditions 
relating to any fixed plant and an informative regarding reversing bleepers. 

 

Page 52

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



5.69 Overall, subject to conditions and a s106 agreement, the proposals would not result in an adverse 
impact upon air quality or noise and would therefore accord with adopted policies ENV11 and 12 
and emerging policies EP4 and EP5. 

 
Contaminated Land 
 
5.70 The site lies within Manor Royal and contains commercial buildings and is recorded as 

contaminated land on Council records. A Ground Investigation Report was submitted with the 
application and the Council’s Contaminated Land officer has raised no objection to the proposal. 
The proposal, subject to a condition requiring implementation of the recommendations within the 
Remediation Strategy, is considered acceptable to address this matter.  

 
Drainage and Flood Risk 
 
5.71 The proposed development site is a brownfield site with buildings and the majority of the remaining  

site area laid to hardstanding. The site is located within Flood Zone 1 and is an area with low 
potential of flooding. Thames Water records indicate that several sewers are present in the vicinity 
of the site – in the access road and along Fleming Way.  The submitted Flood Risk Assessment and 
Drainage Strategy shows that sustainable drainage techniques would be used.  

 
5.72 Surface water runoff would be discharged to the Thames Water surface water sewer manholes to 

the north of the site via a new gravity connection.  In order to restrict surface water runoff to the 
rates required, attenuation would be needed. It is proposed to provide this through the use of below 
ground geocellular attenuation tanks, permeable paving and rain gardens. The report states that the 
combined SuDS scheme would provide water quality, water quantity, biodiversity and amenity 
benefits. The onsite drainage networks and SuDS would be privately managed and maintained for 
the lifetime of the development, to ensure they remain fit for purpose and function appropriately.  

 
5.73 Thames Water has confirmed that it has no objection to the application with regard to foul or surface 

water drainage and recommends an informative on groundwater protection. Southern Water has 
confirmed that it can facilitate water supply to service the proposed development.  

 
5.74 WSCC Flood Risk Management team required further details regarding the drainage strategy and 

have since confirmed that they have no objection subject to conditions relating to  the submission of 
detailed drawings of the drainage system,  a management and maintenance plan for the SuDS 
scheme,  and certification of the implementation of the drainage system.  The Council’s Drainage 
Officer had no objection to the proposals for the disposal of surface water, but did request a 
construction phase surface water management strategy. This has now been provided and he has 
advised that this is satisfactory and has no objection subject to appropriate drainage conditions.  

 
5.75 Overall therefore, subject to conditions covering the SuDS system’s implementation and ongoing 

maintenance, it is considered that the drainage and flooding issues have been satisfactorily 
addressed by the proposal.  

 
Gatwick Airport Safeguarding 
 
5.76 Gatwick Airport Safeguarding and NATS have both commented on the application. NATS has no 

objection. GAL Safeguarding has commented that the proposals have been examined from an 
aerodrome safeguarding perspective and could conflict with safeguarding criteria unless conditions 
to address the following are imposed - the implementation of the Bird Hazard Management Plan,  
the submission of details for the PV array, and a cranes informative. These conditions and the 
informative are recommended accordingly. 

 
Infrastructure and developer contributions 
 
5.77 A S106 agreement is required to secure the following: 
 

• Works to the access 
• Travel Plan and monitoring fee of £3500 
• Employment and Skills Plan 

Page 53

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



• Air Quality mitigation measures on-site to a value of £33,096 
 
5.78 In regard to the Manor Royal contribution towards public realm improvements, the proposal would 

result in a reduction in business floorspace and therefore a contribution would not be required in this 
instance. 

 
 
CONCLUSIONS:- 
 
6.1 The redevelopment of the site would create three modern commercial units, which is considered 

acceptable in planning policy terms and would help support Manor Royal, and in particular an  
existing business. The revised design, whilst based on a typical functional warehouse design, has 
been revised to address concerns about the design, scale and massing of the site frontage on 
Fleming Way and now is considered acceptable on this prominent site. The operational needs of the 
site would be met by the proposed parking arrangements and the Local Highway Authority raises no 
objection. The proposal, in relation to matters such as drainage, air quality and contaminated land is 
acceptable, subject to conditions, and the sustainability measures would provide a BREEAM 
excellent rating for water and energy credits. The proposal would be water neutral. 

 
6.2  Subject to the satisfactory conclusion of the required Habitats Regulations consultation with Natural 

England and the completion of a s106 legal agreement, the proposal would then, subject to 
conditions, accord with the relevant sections of the NPPF, policies within the Local Plan and the 
relevant Supplementary Planning Guidance. On this basis, it is recommended that planning 
permission be granted.  

 
RECOMMENDATION RE: CR/2022/0609/FUL 
 
Delegate the decision to PERMIT to the Head of Economy and Planning, subject to:  
 

• The satisfactory conclusion of the required Habitats Regulations consultation with Natural 
England; 
 

• Subject to the conclusion of a Section 106 legal agreement to secure:  
- Works to the access 
- Travel Plan and monitoring fee of £3500 
- Employment and Skills Plan 
- Air Quality mitigation measures on-site to a value of £33,096; and 

 
• Subject to the following conditions:- 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years from the date of this 

permission. 
 REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the approved 

plans as listed below save as varied by the conditions hereafter: 
 (Drawing numbers to be added) 
 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(England) Order 2015, including any future amendments, Unit 1 hereby permitted shall only be used for 
purposes within Use Class B2 (General Industrial) and Units 2 and 3 shall only be used for purposes 
within Class B8 (Storage or Distribution), as defined in  Schedule 1 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) and for no other purpose. 

 REASON: To ensure that the operational requirements of the site can be met and that water neutrality 
is achieved to accord with policies CH3, ENV2, and IN4 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, 
policies DD1, GI2, SDC4 and ST2 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040 and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. 

 
 

Page 54

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



4. The hours of use for Unit 1 shall be : 
         08:00 - 18:00 - Monday to Friday 
         08:00 - 13:00 - Saturday 
 The unit shall not be used on any Sunday or designated Bank Holidays 
 REASON: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that water neutrality is achieved to accord with 

policies CH3, ENV2, and IN4 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policies DD1, GI2, ST2 
and SDC4 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040 and the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017.                                 

 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class H, Part 7, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revising, revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification), the buildings hereby approved shall not be extended 
or altered in any way unless the Local Planning Authority grants permission on an application in that 
behalf. 

 REASON: A more intensive use of the site would be likely to cause increased parking demand and a 
possible reduction of spaces on site, congestion on adjacent roads through overflow vehicle parking 
and/or cause harmful environmental effects contrary to Policies CH3, ENV2 and IN4 of the Crawley 
Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policies DD1, GI2, ST2 and SDC4 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local 
Plan 2023-2040 and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. 

 
6. No development shall take place unless and until a plan detailing the proposed phasing for the 

implementation of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved phasing plan. 

 REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail in the interests of 
amenity in accordance with Policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy DD1 
of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 REASON FOR PRE-COMMENCEMENT: The phasing of development across the site needs to be 
carefully managed and therefore needs to be addressed at an early stage. 

 
7. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction Management 

Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the 
approved Plan shall be implemented and adhered to throughout the entire construction period. The Plan 
shall provide details as appropriate, but not necessarily be restricted to the following matters: 

 a) the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during construction; 
 b) the method of access and routing of vehicles during construction; 
 c) the parking of vehicles by site operatives and visitors; 
 d) the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste; 
 e) the storage of plant and materials used in construction of the development; 
 f) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding; 
 g) required to mitigate the impact of construction upon the public highway (including the provision 
 of temporary Traffic Regulation Orders); and 
 h) details of public engagement both prior to and during construction works. 
 REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the area and in accordance with 

policies CH3, ENV11 and ENV12 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policies DD1, EP4 
and EP5 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 REASON WHY PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION: As it relates to potential impact upon the 
surrounding area starting from the setting up for construction activities and demolition. 

 
8. No development, including any site setting up works, shall take place until a dust management plan to 

control the emission of dust from the demolition and construction works at the site has been submitted 
to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented on 
commencement of the site works in strict accordance with the agreed plan and shall remain in force 
until the completion of the development. The approved plan should follow the guidance and 
recommendations in the Institute of Air Quality Management’s Guidance on the Assessment of Dust 
from Demolition and Construction. 

 REASON: In the interests of amenity in accordance with policies CH3 and ENV12 of the Crawley 
Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policies DD1 and EP5 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 
2023-2040. 

 REASON WHY PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION: As it relates to potential impact upon the 
surrounding area starting from the setting up for construction activities and demolition. 

Page 55

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



 
9. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the Arboricultural Impact 

Assessment dated October 2023 and its Tree Protection Plan submitted with the application. The 
agreed tree protection measures set out within the report must be fully implemented prior to the 
commencement of site setting up activities or demolition and thereafter maintained for the duration of 
the construction works. 

 REASON: To ensure that the trees to be retained are not compromised during the construction of the 
development in accordance with policies CH2 and CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 
and policy DD1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 REASON WHY PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION: As site setting up activities involve risk to 
nearby trees and to ensure that no harm occurs to the trees that are being retained. 

 
10. No phase of the development hereby permitted shall be implemented unless and until detailed plans 

and particulars of the land levels and the finished floor levels of the buildings in that phase have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The buildings shall be constructed 
in accordance with the approved levels.  

 REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail in the interests of 
amenity in accordance with policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy DD1 
of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 REASON FOR PRE-COMMENCEMENT: The levels across the site will form an integral part of the 
development and therefore need to be addressed at an early stage. 

 
11. No development above slab level shall take place unless and until there has been submitted to, and 

approved by, the Local Planning Authority a soft and hard landscaping scheme, including details of 
retained trees, boundary treatments, grassed areas, the species, number and spacing of trees, hedges 
and shrubs to be planted and details of any water features.  

 REASON: In the interests of amenity, of the environment of the development  and to avoid endangering 
the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Gatwick Airport through the attraction of birds and 
an increase in the bird hazard risk of the application site, in accordance with policies CH3 and IN1 of 
the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015–2030, the Green Infrastructure Supplementary Planning 
Document and policies DD1 and IN1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
12. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in 

the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of the building or the completion of the 
development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years from 
the completion of development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. All hard landscaping 
comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out before the completion of the 
development or first occupation, whichever is the sooner. 

 REASON: In the interests of amenity and of the environment of the development in accordance with 
policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015–2030 and policy DD1 of the Draft Crawley Borough 
Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
13. Prior to the first occupation of the development, a Landscape Management Plan which covers a period 

of no less than 15 years shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The landscape management plan shall include a programme for implementation, long term design 
objectives, long term management responsibility and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas 
along with water efficiency and conservation measures. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.   

 REASON: In the interests of visual amenity of the area and to ensure that the development is water 
neutral in accordance with policies CH3 and ENV2 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan, policies DD1, 
GI2 and SDC4 of the Draft Crawley Local Plan 2023 - 2040 and the Manor Royal Supplementary 
Planning Document and, taking account of the Natural England Position Statement on water neutrality 
received on 14 September 2021, to ensure that the development does not cause an adverse impact 
upon protected habitats in the Arun Valley, including the Amberley Wild Brooks Site of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI), the Pulborough Brooks SSSI and the Arun Valley Special Protection Area/Special Area 
of Conservation and Ramsar sites, in breach of the Conservation of Species and Habitats Regulations 
2017. 

 

Page 56

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



14. All ecological mitigation and enhancement measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance 
with the details contained in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Temple Group Ltd, July 2022) as 
submitted with the planning application. 

 REASON: To conserve and enhance protected and Priority species, to allow the Local Planning 
Authority to discharge its duties under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as 
amended), the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and s40 of the NERC Act 2006 (Priority 
habitats & species), and in accordance with policy ENV2 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 
and policy GI2 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
15. No development shall take place unless and until an invasive non-native species protocol has been 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include details of the containment, 
control and removal of the Wall Cotoneaster present on site. The works shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the approved details and shall be retained in that manner thereafter. 

 REASON: In the interests of ecology and biodiversity, to allow the Local Planning Authority to discharge 
its duties under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990 and the Environmental Protection Act Duty of Care Regulations 1991, and in accordance with 
policy ENV2 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy GI2 of the Draft Crawley Borough 
Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 REASON FOR PRE-COMMENCEMENT: To ensure appropriate measures during the construction 
phase are implemented for the removal of non-native invasive species. 

 
16. Prior to first occupation, a Biodiversity Compensation and Enhancement Strategy for protected and 

Priority species shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 The content of the Biodiversity Compensation and Enhancement Strategy shall include the following: 
 a) Purpose and conservation objectives for the proposed measures; 
 b) detailed designs or product descriptions to achieve stated objectives; 
 c) locations, orientations and heights of proposed measures by appropriate maps and plans (where 

relevant); 
 d) persons responsible for implementing the measures; and 
 e) details of initial aftercare and long-term maintenance (where relevant). 
 The works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details shall be retained in that 

manner thereafter. 
 REASON: To enhance protected and Priority species & habitats, to allow the Local Planning Authority 

to discharge its duties under the National Planning Policy Framework and s40 of the NERC Act 2006 
(Priority habitats & species), and in accordance with policy ENV2 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 
2015-2030 and policy GI2 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
17. Any external fixed plant installed shall meet the following rating: LAr,Tr = 44 dB (Day-time (07:00 to 

23:00hrs) and LAr,Tr = 42 dB Night-time (23:00-07:00hrs) at the nearest noise sensitive premises. 
 REASON: In the interests of amenity and in accordance with policies CH3 and ENV11 of the Crawley 

Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policies DD1 and EP4 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-
2040 and the relevant provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
18. No above ground development shall be carried out unless and until a schedule of materials and finishes, 

along with samples of such materials and finishes, to be used for external walls and roofs of the 
proposed buildings have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed materials unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail in the interests of 
amenity by endeavouring to achieve buildings of visual quality in accordance with policy CH3 of the 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy DD1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-
2040. 

 
19. No above ground works shall be carried out unless and until precise details (including a 1:20 section of 

the glazing details), showing the window profiles, main entrance door fenestration profiles and 
surrounding details for each unit have been submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the agreed details. 

 REASON: To control the development in detail and to ensure a high quality development in accordance 
with policies CH2 and CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy DD1 of the Draft 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040 

Page 57

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



 
20. The development hereby approved shall be implemented in strict accordance with the Ground 

Investigation Report October 2023 submitted with the application. The specifications for the drinking 
water supply pipes shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, prior to their 
implementation. 

 REASON: The proposed site has been used for commercial purposes for many years and has the 
potential to have areas of contamination and to ensure that the development does not contribute to, or 
is not put at unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution or 
contaminated land in accordance with policy ENV10 of Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and 
policy EP3 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
21. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no 

further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be 
carried out until a remediation strategy detailing how this contamination will be dealt with has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation strategy shall be 
implemented as approved.  

 REASON: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at unacceptable risk 
from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution from previously unidentified 
contamination sources at the development site in line with with policy ENV10 of Crawley Borough Local 
Plan 2015-2030, policy EP3 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040 and paragraph 170 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
22. Within three months of the occupation of any building forming part of the development, a post-

construction report shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, verifying 
that the building or the development as a whole has achieved the minimum Energy and Water standards 
for BREEAM ‘Excellent’. 

 REASON: In the interests of sustainable design and construction in accordance with policies ENV6 and 
ENV9 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policy SDC1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local 
Plan 2023-2040  and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
23. No phase within the development shall be occupied until the measures relating to that phase which are 

detailed in the submitted Energy Strategy Issue 4, dated October 2023, and Sustainability Statement 
Issue 7, dated March 2024, have been implemented.   

 REASON: In the interests of environmental sustainability, in accordance with policy ENV6 of the 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policy SDC1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-
2030 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
24. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details showing the proposed location 

of one fire hydrant or stored water supply (in accordance with the West Sussex Fire and Rescue 
Guidance Notes) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved details shall then be implemented prior to occupation of the development and thereafter 
retained. 

 REASON: To ensure the operational requirements of the development in accordance with policies IN1 
and CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015–2030 and policies DD1 and IN2 of the Draft Crawley 
Borough Local Plan 2023-2040.   

 REASON FOR PRE-COMMENCEMENT: This condition is required pre-commencement as it relates to 
how the site layout and building will be constructed. 

 
25. Prior to the occupation of any phase of the development hereby permitted, the car, motorcycle and lorry 

parking spaces (including the electric vehicle charging spaces) and the turning and manoeuvring areas 
for that phase shall be constructed in accordance with the approved plans.  These spaces and areas 
shall thereafter be retained for their designated use. 

 REASON: To provide adequate on-site vehicle parking and turning space for the development in 
accordance with policies CH3 and IN3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, the car parking 
standards in the Urban Design Supplementary Planning Document and policies DD1 and ST2 of the 
Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040 . 

 
26. No phase of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied unless and until plans and elevations 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the following facilities 
relating to that phase: 

Page 58

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



  (i) cycle parking facilities; 
  (ii) details of the storage of refuse / recycling provision; and 
  (iii) details of the substation and transformer plants. 
 The agreed details must be laid out and available prior to first occupation of that phase of the 

development and retained for the life of the development unless otherwise approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the operational and servicing requirements 
of the development are met in accordance with policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-
2030 and policy DD2 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
27. No phase within the development shall be occupied until the electric vehicle charging points identified 

on the site plan drawing no. 19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-2121 Rev P17 relating to that phase have been 
installed, made operational and are available for use. The electric vehicle charging points shall 
thereafter be maintained. 

 REASON: In the interests of environmental sustainability, in accordance with policy ENV6 of the 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policy SDC1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-
2040 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
28. The Bird Hazard Management Plan Version 2.0 dated 31/10/22 shall be implemented as approved upon 

completion of the roofs and shall remain in force for the life of the buildings. No subsequent alterations 
to the plan are to take place unless first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 REASON: It is necessary to manage the roofs in order to mitigate bird hazard and avoid endangering 
the safe movements of aircraft and the operation of Gatwick Airport through the attractiveness of birds 
in accordance with policy IN1 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy IN1 of the Draft 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
29. Prior to the commencement of development, construction drawings of the surface water drainage 

network, associated sustainable drainage components and flow control mechanisms shall be submitted 
and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall then be constructed as per the 
agreed method statement, FRA (Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, prepared by Fairhurst, 
March 2024, Ref. 143413-FAH-ZZ-XX-RP-C-02-10) and Drawing 143431-FAH-ZZ-00-SK-D-001-P9 
and remaining in perpetuity for the lifetime of the development unless agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No alteration to the agreed drainage scheme shall occur without prior written 
approval from the Local Authority. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability and to comply with 
the National Planning Policy Framework and policy ENV8 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-
2030 and policy EP1 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
30. No phase within the development shall be occupied until a survey and report from an independent 

surveyor has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The survey 
and report shall demonstrate that the surface water drainage system has been constructed in 
accordance with the details approved pursuant to Condition 29. Where necessary, details of corrective 
works to be carried out along with a timetable for their completion, shall be included for approval in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any corrective works required shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved timetable and subsequently re-surveyed with the findings submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: Part of the proposal is to re-profile the existing land to reduce the incidence of ponding within 
the development. Furthermore the surface water strategy has been phased into three areas which each 
area having its own SuDS system. The performance of the drainage system will depend on the 
effectiveness of the proposed surface water management strategy and this must be proven to avoid 
flooding within the development  and to ensure the flood risk is adequately addressed, not increased 
and users remain safe for the lifetime of the development in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework, policy ENV8 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy EP1 of the 
Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040.                                                                                      

 
31. No phase within the development shall be occupied until the photovoltaics relating to that phase which 

are referred to in the submitted Energy Strategy Issue 4, dated October 2023, the Sustainability 
Statement Issue 7, dated March 2024 and shown on drawing no. 19032-HNW-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-2150 Rev 

Page 59

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



P02, have been installed in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and been approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: In the interests of environmental sustainability and to ensure the development does not 
endanger the safe movement of aircraft or the operation of Gatwick Airport through interference with 
communication, navigational aids and surveillance equipment and glare issues in accordance with 
policy ENV6 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policy SDC1 of the Draft Crawley Borough 
Local Plan 2023-2030 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
32. The development, including the installation of water efficient fixtures and fittings, shall be carried out in 

strict accordance with the details set out in the Water Neutrality Statement Issue 8 and the Sustainability 
Statement Issue 7 submitted with the application. The approved details for each unit shall be 
implemented in full prior to the first occupation of each unit of the development hereby approved and 
remain for the lifetime of the development. 

 REASON: Taking account of the Natural England Position Statement on water neutrality received on 14 
September 2021 and to ensure that the development is water neutral and does not cause an adverse 
impact upon protected habitats in the Arun Valley, including the Amberley Wild Brooks Site of Special 
Scientific Interest (SSSI), the Pulborough Brooks SSSI and the Arun Valley Special Protection 
Area/Special Area of Conservation and Ramsar sites, in breach of the Conservation of Species and 
Habitats Regulations 2017 and in accordance with policy ENV2 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 
2015-2030 and policies GI2 and SDC4 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 

 
33. No permanently staffed canteen shall be provided in the development hereby permitted.  
 REASON: To ensure the development is water neutral in accordance with policy ENV9 of the Crawley 

Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and policy SDC4 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-2040. 
 
34. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until measures to enable the development to 

be 'network ready' to connect to a future District Energy Network, as indicated on drawing 19032-HNW-
ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-2121 Rev P17 (Site Plan As Proposed), have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the 
agreed details. 

 REASON: In the interests of environmental sustainability, in accordance with policy ENV7 of the 
Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030, policy SDC2 of the Draft Crawley Borough Local Plan 2023-
2040 and the Planning and Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document. 

  
 
 INFORMATIVES 
 
1. Within the boundaries of Crawley Borough Council, the Control of Pollution Act 1974 is used to control 

noise from construction sites. Section 60 of the Act permits Local Authorities to specify the hours the 
noisy works are permitted. 

 The permitted hours for noisy construction work in the Borough of Crawley are as follows: 
 0800 to 1800 Monday to Friday; and 
 0800 to 1300 on Saturday, 
 With no noisy construction works taking place on Sundays, Bank Holidays, Public Holidays, Christmas 

Day, Boxing Day or New Year's Day. 
 The developer shall employ at all times the best practical means to minimise noise disturbance to nearby 

residents. All construction work practises shall comply with B.S. 5228 1:2009 'Code of practice for noise 
and vibration control on construction and open sites'. Any exemptions to the above hours must be 
agreed with the Environmental Health team in advance. 

  
2. Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane or tall reaching construction 

equipment may be required during construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to 
the requirement within the British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane 
operators to consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. London 
Gatwick requires a minimum of four weeks' notice. For crane queries/applications, please visit Crane 
Permits (gatwickairport.com) or email cranes@gatwickairport.com. 

 
3. The applicant is required to obtain all appropriate consents from West Sussex County Council, as 

Highway Authority, to cover the off-site highway works. The applicant is requested to contact the 

Page 60

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



Implementation Team Leader (01243 642105) to commence this process. The applicant is advised that 
it is an offence to undertake any works within the highway prior to the agreement being in place. 

 
4. The applicant is advised install broad-band reversing beepers for all fleet vehicles used for vehicle 

movement operations on site.   
 
5. The applicant is directed to the advice from Sussex Police in their consultation response letters dated 

20th October 2022 and 8th December 2023.The applicant should consider the implementation of 
security measures which can be found at www.securedbydesign.com and also consider the comments 
made about issues such as CCTV, secure cycle parking and the Parkmark scheme. 

 
6. The applicant is referred to the comments from UKPN dated 22nd October 2022 regarding the 

substations.  
 
7. The applicant is advised of the following advice from Thames Water: 
 There are public sewers crossing or close to the development. The applicant is advised to read Thames 

Water's guide on working near to or diverting pipes.  
 With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by Southern Water plc. For the 

applicant's information, the address to write to is Southern House, Yeoman Road, Worthing, West 
Sussex BN13 3NX. Tel 0845 2780845. 

  
 A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required for discharging 

groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and may result 
in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. Thames Water would expect the 
developer to demonstrate what measures he will undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into 
the public sewer. Permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by 
telephoning 020 3577 9483 or by emailing trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should 
be completed online via www.thameswater.co.uk - Please refer to the Wholesale; Business customers; 
Groundwater discharges section.  

  
 
1. NPPF Statement 
  
 In determining this planning application, the Local Planning Authority assessed the proposal against all 

material considerations and has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner based on 
seeking solutions where possible and required, by: 

  
 • Providing advice in a timely and manner through pre-application discussions/correspondence. 
  
 • Liaising with consultees/applicant/agent and discussing the proposal where considered appropriate 

and necessary in a timely manner during the course of the determination of the application.  
  
 • Seeking amended plans/additional information to address identified issues during the course of the 

application. 
  
 This decision has been taken in accordance with the requirement in the National Planning Policy 

Framework, as set out in article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) Order 2015. 

 

Page 61

 6
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

C
R

/2
02

2/
06

09
/F

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 
 

 
  

P
age 62

 6 Planning Application CR/2022/0609/F

A
genda Item

 6


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Planning Application CR/2023/0734/FUL - Crawley College, College Road,Three Bridges,Crawley
	6 Planning Application CR/2022/0609/FUL - Linac House & Adjoining Land, Fleming Way, Northgate, Crawley

